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Monadelphous (adj). Mon`a*del”phous

A botanical term describing the stamens of some plants and flowers that have 
all the filaments united to form a single bundle. 

The name signifies the coming together of many to one point for strength and 
unity of purpose.
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Shareholders are advised that the  
Monadelphous Group Limited (Company) 
2008 Annual General Meeting (AGM) will 
be held on Tuesday 25 November 2008 
at the Bluewater Function Centre, 
56 Duncraig Road, Applecross, Western 
Australia, commencing at 10.00am (AWDT).

Sulphuric Acid Plant, Ravensthorpe WA
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Our Purpose

Our Vision

Our Competitive Advantage

“  To deliver safe and reliable construction, maintenance 
and industrial service solutions to industry ”

“ We deliver what we promise ”

“  Monadelphous aims to double in size every five years by 
being recognised as a truly great company to work for, 
work with, and invest in ”

 

Monadelphous has earned a reputation for engineering excellence through the 
delivery of quality work, providing a reliable and flexible service and developing 
long term customer relationships.

 We are committed to the safety, wellbeing and development of our people; the 
delivery of outstanding service to our customers; and the provision of superior 
returns to our shareholders. 
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Engineering  
Construction (EC)

The Engineering 
Construction division 
provides multi-disciplinary 
project management and 
construction services on 
a large scale including 
fabrication and installation 
of structural steel, tankage, 
mechanical and process 
equipment, piping, plant 
commissioning, demolition, 
remediation works, and 
turnkey design and  
construct services.

Maintenance and 
Industrial Services 
(M&IS)

The Maintenance and 
Industrial Services 
division specialises in the 
management and execution 
of mechanical and electrical 
maintenance services to 
the resources, energy and 
infrastructure sectors. The 
Division specialises in the 
planning, management and 
execution of multi-disciplinary 
maintenance, shutdowns and 
minor capital works. 

Electrical and 
Instrumentation  
Services (MIE) 

MIE delivers specialist 
electrical and instrumentation, 
installation, communications 
and construction services 
to heavy industry across 
Australasia. MIE excels in 
the provision of innovative, 
technically advanced 
engineering solutions to meet 
customer needs. 

Skystar Airport  
Services (Skystar)

Skystar offers complete 
ground handling and logistics 
services to Australian and 
New Zealand airlines, aircraft 
operators, charters, cargo 
companies and passenger 
aviation markets. Services 
include check-in and ticketing 
functions, passenger 
embarking/disembarking, 
baggage and freight handling, 
aircraft push back, towing, 
marshalling and load 
planning. Skystar’s integrated 
approach provides clients 
with a single point of contact 
for all of their airport ground 
handling logistics needs.

Our Company
Monadelphous is a leading engineering 
group providing construction, 
maintenance and industrial services to 
the resources, energy and infrastructure 
sectors. We aim to build, maintain and 
support customer operations through 
safe, reliable, innovative and cost 
effective industrial services.

Listed in the benchmark S&P/ASX 
200 index, Monadelphous aims to be 
recognised as a truly great company to 
work for, work with and invest in.

Our long term approach to the 
management of client relationships and 
the delivery of high quality work has 
earned our company a reputation for 
engineering excellence. 

Monadelphous’ highly customer 
focussed approach and ability to provide 
high value solutions for a diverse range 
of customer requirements has been 
fundamental to our continuing success.

Our highly regarded service reputation 
is derived from our people and our 
culture. Monadelphous’ core values 
of safety and wellbeing, integrity, 
achievement, teamwork and loyalty 
form the foundation of a way of life 
that stands the Company apart from 
our competitors. The core values are 
embedded in Monadelphous’ processes 
and systems and are brought to life by 
our people who embody them. 

It is Monadelphous’ people who 
continue to drive and sustain  
that reputation.

Monadelphous operates major offices 
in Perth, Brisbane, Adelaide and 
Beijing, and continues to focus on the 
development of regional engineering 
support operations. This approach 
places us in a unique position to 
maximise our core business and 
diversify into key industry sectors  
around Australasia.
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A review and rollout of the 5-year group strategic plan

Record earnings in a year of consolidation  
Reported EPS up 13%

EC and MIE consolidated while M&IS growth trend continued

Continued geographic, commodity, client and service diversification

 Significant progress in global sourcing initiatives  
Established and commenced offshore fabrication operations  
and pre-assembly capability

 Strong employee health and safety performance trend  
32% group improvement

 Successful divestment of Skystar’s international turnaround operations  
Generating a $4.9 million pre-tax profit

 High level of tendering success  
Over $900 million in new contracts and contract extensions secured

Year in Review

“  In a year of consolidation, we continued to maintain a high activity level as we positioned 
the business for sustainable shareholder returns ” – Robert Velletri, Managing Director
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Operating and Financial Highlights

$ 954.0 68.9 %

954.0 68.9

963.7 79.2

532.0 54.3

390.6 39.0

220.8 23.2

Sales revenue ($M) 2008 2008

2007 2007

2006 2006

2005 2005

2004 2004

Return on equity (% avg)

Sales revenue eased this period due 
to the predicted ramping down of a 
number of major projects together 
with timing effects and delays in new 
projects coming to market.

One of the long term areas of focus 
has been to maximise the returns 
on our existing asset base. Return 
on equity this period dipped due to 
a proportionally larger increase in 
shareholders’ funds.

16.1 8.62004 2004

$ 104.5  $ 101.6

104.5 101.6

94.0 73.9

49.0 35.3

29.0 4.7

2008 2008

2007 2007

2006 2006

2005 2005

EBITDA ($M) Net cash position ($M)

EBITDA grew strongly reflecting strong 
market conditions, business efficiencies 
and our reputation for project delivery.

Net cash position expanded significantly 
during the period due to our strong 
cash flow generation, disciplined  
capital management and some  
earnings retention.

 $ 66.2 3,848

66.2 3,848

60.4 3,791

29.4 2,926

16.7 1,642

8.5 1,480

2008 2008

2007 2007

2006 2006

2005 2005

2004 2004

Net profit after tax ($M) Employees

Net profit after tax expanded solidly due 
mainly to stronger group margins and a 
boost from the full period contribution 
from the recently acquired Ellavale 
Engineering business.

Employee numbers increased as 
we invested in our future productive 
capacity. The Company also 
achieved success in a number of 
key employee programs including 
graduate recruitment & development, 
international recruitment and  
employee referral.

79.1 c 8.6

79.1 8.6

73.6 12.6

36.5 17.3

21.1 22.6

11.1 28.6

2008 2008

2007 2007

2006 2006

2005 2005

2004 2004

Earnings per share (cents) Group safety (TCIFR)

Earnings per share were up firmly 
following the exercise of some 
employee options during the period.

Our continued investment in health, 
safety and environment personnel, 
systems, training and development has 
continued to pay dividends. Across 
the 2007/08 period, total case injury 
frequency rates (TCIFR) – a key safety 
metric – improved significantly.

Note: Figures are normalised unless otherwise stated

7.52004 552004

72.0 c

72.0

66.0

33.0

19.3

2008

2007

2006

2005

Dividends per share (cents) Total shareholder returns (%)

Dividends per share also expanded 
during the year. The full year dividend 
payout represents a 91% payout rate 
and is in line with the Board’s revised 
dividend payment policy announced in 
February 2007.

Following a year of consolidation, total 
shareholder returns were also down 
marginally although still outperformed 
many of our peers, S&P/ASX 200 
industry sector and the broader market.

- 4 %
133

82

138

2008     

2007

2006

2005

- 4

“  2007/08 has been a continuation of strong earnings and dividend growth. Our ongoing 
focus on cash flow generation alongside robust balance sheet settings gives us flexibility 
for the future ” – Giles Everist, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
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Board Members

John Rubino 
Chairman

John was appointed to the Board on  
18 January 1991. Initially serving as 
Managing Director and Chairman,  
John resigned as Managing Director on  
30 May 2003, continuing as Chairman  
since that time. John has 42 years 
experience in the construction and 
engineering services industry.

Robert Velletri 
Managing Director

Robert was appointed to the Board on  
26 August 1992 and commenced as 
Managing Director on 30 May 2003. A 
Mechanical Engineer, Robert has  
29 years experience in the construction  
and engineering services industry and  
is a Corporate Member of the Institute  
of Engineers Australia.

Peter Dempsey 
Non-Executive Director

Peter was appointed to the Board on  
30 May 2003. With 35 years experience in 
the construction and engineering services 
industry, Peter is a Civil Engineer and Fellow 
of the Institute of Engineers Australia.



Chris Michelmore  
Non-Executive Director 

Chris was appointed to the Board on  
1 October 2007. Chris has 36 years 
experience in the construction and 
engineering services industry throughout 
Australia, South East Asia and the Middle 
East. Chris is a Civil and Structural  
Engineer and Fellow of the Institute  
of Engineers Australia.

Irwin Tollman 
Non-Executive Director

Irwin was appointed to the Board on  
26 August 1992. Irwin has 17 years 
experience in the construction and 
engineering services industry in Australia. 
Irwin is a Chartered Accountant and  
Member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants, Australia.

Giles Everist
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Giles is a Chartered Accountant and Member 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
in England and Wales. He has 14 years 
experience in the resources, construction 
and engineering services industries including 
5 years with Monadelphous.
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It is with pleasure that I present the 
Monadelphous Group Limited 2008 
Annual Report. We have consolidated 
our strong financial performance trend 
over recent years with the achievement 
of another record profit for the year 
ending 30 June 2008.

Financial Highlights

Monadelphous recorded a total profit 
after tax of $69.6 million, up 15.1% on 
the previous corresponding period. The 
result was impacted by a one off profit 
after tax contribution of $3.4 million 
from the divestment, in January 2008, 
of the Perth and Brisbane international 
turnaround operations of subsidiary 
company, Skystar Airport Services. 
The normalised profit after tax of $66.2 
million was 9.5% up on the previous 
corresponding period.

Total reported earnings per share were 
up 13.1% to 83.2 cents, with normalised 
earnings up 7.5% to 79.1 cents per 
share. The Board of Directors declared 
a final dividend of 43 cents per share 
fully franked, taking the total 2007/08 
full year dividend payout to 72 cents per 
share fully franked, a 9.1% increase on 
the 2006/07 reporting period. The full 
year dividend payout represents a 91% 
payout rate on normalised earnings 
and is in line with the Board’s revised 
dividend payment policy announced in 
February 2007. 

Margins improved from continuing 
strong market conditions and strong 
operational performance as well as 
the high value of completed projects 
during the year. Earnings before interest, 
tax, depreciation and amortisation 
were up 11.1% to $104.5 million, on a 
normalised basis.

As forecast in our annual results 
announcement in August 2007, 
construction revenues softened this 
year. This was due to the predicted 
ramping down of a number of major 
projects, timing effects and delays 
of new projects coming to market 

owing principally to industry capacity 
constraints. As a result, sales revenue 
for the year was flat at $954.0 
million, down 1.0% from the previous 
corresponding period.

Operating Highlights

Monadelphous continued to enjoy 
strong demand conditions from the 
resources and energy sectors with all 
major customers seeking to expand 
their operations. Our strong position 
in the mining and minerals processing 
sector and our expanding presence in 
the oil & gas sector have continued to 
provide significant opportunities for both 
the Engineering Construction  
and Maintenance and Industrial  
Services divisions. 

A key highlight during 2007/08 was the 
high volume of contracts won. More 
than $900 million of new contracts 
and contract extensions were secured 
across a number of market sectors.

A significant milestone was BHP Billiton 
Iron Ore’s awarding of a $290 million 
construction contract for structural, 
mechanical and piping works for the 
Newman Hub Project – the largest 
contract ever won by the Company. 
The work is associated with the Rapid 
Growth Project 4 in the north west of 
Western Australia.

Another highlight for Monadelphous 
during the reporting period was the 
strong performance in health and 
safety. The positive improvement trend 
in recent years continued in 2007/08, 
with a pleasing 32% reduction in injury 
frequency rates. We continue to invest 
in education and training programs at 
all levels, as well as further developing 
management systems and tools to 
support continuous improvement  
in this vital area.

Employee numbers consolidated to 
3,848 during the full year in line with 
work volumes. We continue to invest 
in our people and this will become 
increasingly important in order to attract, 

retain and develop people in a severely  
labour-constrained environment.

Planning for future office 
accommodation and associated 
infrastructure has also received 
considerable attention this year. 
Subsequent to the reporting period, in 
July 2008, we signed a 12 year lease 
agreement for new premises in Victoria 
Park to accommodate our Applecross 
head office and all Perth based offices 
which are currently spread over four 
locations. They are due to be available 
for occupation early in 2010.

Outlook

Following a year of consolidation in 
2007/08, we have moved into the new 
financial year with a strong forward 
workload and positive growth prospects 
for all company divisions.

However, capacity constraints will 
continue to present the most significant 
challenge for Monadelphous and 
the broader industry. The risk of 
project deferral and delays due to 
these constraints will continue to 
provide uncertainty as to the timing of 
construction revenues. 

Concentrating on earnings quality, 
winning the people skills war and 
increasing capacity through more 
innovative project delivery methods will 
continue to be key focuses for us in 
2008/09.

Acquisition opportunities aimed at 
advancing the Company’s market 
development strategies will also 
continue to be pursued.

In closing, I would like to acknowledge 
and thank our highly talented and 
dedicated management and staff  
for what has been another 
commendable result.

Chairman’s Report 
John Rubino Chairman

“   Monadelphous has consolidated its strong financial performance trend over recent years 
with the achievement of another record profit ” – John Rubino, Chairman

John Rubino

CHAIRMAN
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Managing Director’s Report 
Robert Velletri Managing Director

The 2007/08 financial year has been 
one of consolidation as we laid out the 
foundations for the next phase in our 
growth story. 

Central to this consolidation story has 
been a strategic review of the business 
to ensure the organisational framework 
and priorities will support market 
development over the next five years.

We have continued to focus on our 
most important strategy in 2007/08, the 
people recruitment and retention drive. 
Ongoing development of innovative 
strategies around recruitment and 
retention will take an even higher priority 
in the coming year. Monadelphous 
has also continued to make significant 
progress to expand capacity against 
the backdrop of a constrained domestic 
environment.

Across all divisions there is a clear 
mandate to maximise business 
growth in core markets, diversify into 
new markets and utilise acquisitions 
to support longer term strategic 
development. Consistent with our 
strategic focus, we have also made 
significant progress on our diversification 
strategy expanding by geography, 
commodity, client and service.

Furthermore, the ongoing focus on 
earnings quality, long term relationships, 
blue chip customers, larger and longer 
contracts, and a growing recurring 
revenue base has also yielded another 
strong operating performance  
during 2007/08. 

Engineering Construction

After a major surge in construction 
revenue from a large wave of major 
contracts in 2006/07, the Engineering 
Construction division recorded sales 
revenue of $576.0 million in 2007/08, 
a decrease of 12.4% on the previous 
corresponding period.

The lower revenue reflected the unusual 
number of large projects ramping down, 
together with timing effects from delays 
on new projects coming on stream.

During the year, the Division substantially 
completed a number of large projects 
including several for BHP Billiton Iron 
Ore’s Rapid Growth Project 3 (RGP3) 
and Rapid Growth Project 4 (RGP4) 
and Rio Tinto Iron Ore’s Dampier Port 
Upgrade Phase B Project (WA). Other 
significant milestone contracts during 
the period included the completion of 
works associated with BHP Billiton’s 
Ravensthorpe Nickel Project (WA); 
and completion of the Wyndham 
Water Treatment Plant for WA’s Water 
Corporation, noteworthy due to it being 

the Company’s first water industry 
project. The Division also announced 
over $700 million of new major 
construction contracts during the period 
from a broader base of resources, 
energy and infrastructure sectors 
including iron ore, coal, gold, oil & gas, 
and water. 

Major projects in progress at the end 
of the period included BHP Billiton Iron 
Ore’s RGP4 at the Newman Hub (WA), 
Rio Tinto Iron Ore’s Cape Lambert 
Upgrade 80MTPA Project (WA), Eni’s 
Blacktip Development Project (NT) 
and BGMMC’s Boddington Gold Mine 
Expansion Project (WA), amongst 
others.

Maintenance  
and Industrial Services

The Maintenance and Industrial Services 
(M&IS) division sustained its growth 
trend recording sales revenue of $316.7 
million, an increase of 20.6% on the 
previous corresponding period. The 
Division continued to capitalise on 
healthy market conditions with a solid 
performance across the board.

The year featured the award of over 
$200 million worth of new long term 
contracts and contract extensions. In 
particular, the Division was successful in 
winning work with new major customers 
in the oil & gas, and coal sectors.

“  The outlook for Monadelphous’ core markets continues to strengthen. The sustained high 
level of global demand for Australian resources continues to drive strong market conditions 
across the entire resources, energy and infrastructure sectors ” – Robert Velletri, Managing Director
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In March 2007, Monadelphous acquired 
Ellavale Engineering, a specialist 
provider of dragline and shovel 
shutdown and maintenance services. 
Ellavale Engineering has successfully 
been integrated into the M&IS division.

During the year, the Division was 
also awarded and commenced the 
maintenance service contract for 
the new coal preparation plant at 
Anglo Coal’s Dawson Mine (QLD) 
and completed maintenance work at 
BHP Billiton’s Ravensthorpe Nickel 
Operations (WA). 

Other M&IS highlights in 2007/08 
included the completion of major 
shutdowns for BHP Billiton, Rio Tinto, 
BP, Chevron and ConocoPhillips.

Furthermore, the M&IS division 
experienced a significant expansion 
in its oil & gas capability across 
2007/08 following the long term BP 
capital improvement project wins at 
Kwinana (WA) and Bulwer Island (QLD). 
Subsequent to the reporting period, 
in July 2008, the Division also won a 
long term shutdown alliance contract 
with Incitec Pivot which will cover major 
shutdowns across a number  
of Queensland operations.

Electrical and  
Instrumentation Services

Our electrical and instrumentation 
services division, MIE consolidated its 
position in 2007/08, recording sales 
revenue of $76.0 million, up 5.9% on 
the previous corresponding period.

Projects carried out during the period 
included a number of major electrical 
and instrumentation contracts 
associated with the expansion of coal 
handling operations at Gladstone and 
Dalrymple Bay in Queensland.

The establishment of MIE’s operations in 
WA saw the Division providing electrical 
and instrumentation services for a 
number of projects including its first 
significant contract in the WA resources 
market. MIE’s expansion into WA will 
provide a strong foundation for growth 
available from the long pipeline of 
opportunities in this market.

Skystar Airport Services

Our aviation ground handling business, 
Skystar Airport Services recorded sales 
revenue of $14.7 million in 2007/08. The 
result was a 23.4% decrease over the 
previous corresponding period and was 
impacted by the divestment of a portion 

of Skystar Airport Services operations  
to Toll Dnata Airport Services in  
January 2008.

The Skystar Airport Services business 
continues to operate profitably and is 
now focussed on growing revenues with 
Australian carriers.

Capacity Expansion Strategies

Monadelphous continued to experience 
the impact of industry wide capacity 
constraints, with most projects 
experiencing delays due to critical 
shortages in professional engineering 
and skilled labour workforces. 
Sustaining growth in this capacity 
constrained environment will require  
a more innovative approach to  
project delivery.

Three strategies have been identified 
with the aim to increase workforce 
capacity and better meet the demands 
of customers. These focus on offshore 
fabrication, increasing the use of 
component modularisation and  
growing the pool of engineers with  
‘job ready’ skills.

In our first major venture overseas, 
we have established a supply office in 
Beijing, China to source fabricated steel 

Managing Director’s Report (Continued) 
Robert Velletri Managing Director
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products and specialist engineering 
services for projects in Australia. The 
newly established subsidiary, SinoStruct 
Pty Ltd, successfully commenced 
operations during the second half, 
sourcing fabricated products from a 
number of centres in eastern China. 

Coupled with the China strategy, we 
will maximise offshore fabrication and 
assembly, including increasing the 
modularisation of components.

Thirdly, in 2007/08 we entered into 
a ten year strategic partnership with 
the University of Western Australia to 
establish an innovative engineering 
education and training facility, the 
Monadelphous Integrated Learning 
Centre. This will address the increasing 
demand for engineers by producing 
more ‘job ready’ graduates and  
elevate Monadelphous as an employer 
of choice.

Management and Development

Flowing from the comprehensive 
strategic review, a number of 
key changes have been made to 
Monadelphous’ divisional management 
structures which have redirected the 
focus to better support business  
growth objectives.

The Engineering Construction division 
has expanded its management 
structure. A customer market sector 
based structure has been established 
with key people appointed to focus on 
separate markets for iron ore, mineral 
processing, oil & gas, and water.  
A new business development unit to 
focus on emerging markets has also 
been established.

The Maintenance and Industrial Services 
division has continued to develop its 
regional structure expanding its footprint 
further into New South Wales, and 
northern Queensland, with new bases 
opened in Townsville and Mackay. 
The geographic markets expansion 
continued with a major office also being 
established in Adelaide to pursue the 
growing opportunities in the resources 
sector in South Australia.

The organisational plan will also 
see the development of a focussed 
central Business Services Group to 
more efficiently and effectively provide 
functional support services to the 
operations.

Outlook

The outlook for Monadelphous’ core 
markets continues to strengthen. The 
sustained high level of global demand 
for Australian resources continues to 
drive strong market conditions across 
the entire resources, energy and 
infrastructure sectors.

The current high level of resources 
development activity is expected to 
increase even further in the coming 
years. A long and strong pipeline of  
iron ore, oil & gas and coal expansion 
projects and Monadelphous’ growing 
stature within a broadening market 
will provide ongoing opportunities for 
business growth.

Looking forward, I am pleased to say 
that the Company is well positioned 
across a range of commodity segments 
to play a major role in the expanding 
opportunities flowing from these 
development projects.

Rob Velletri

MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Dampier Port Upgrade Phase B, Dampier WA
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Operations in Focus - Engineering Construction

“  Following a major surge in construction revenue last year, Engineering Construction has 
again produced a commendable operating performance and the broader economic 
environment continues to support our longer-term organic growth ”  
 – Dino Foti, Executive General Manager, Engineering Construction

Highlights

-  Awarded over $700 million in new 
construction projects

-  Significantly expanded oil & gas 
construction capabilities

-  Established and commenced  
offshore fabrication operations  
and pre-assembly capability

Our Engineering Construction (EC) 
division has completed an outstanding 
year, securing over $700 million in 
new projects from a broader base of 
resource, energy and infrastructure 
sectors. These projects include the 
largest contract ever awarded to 
Monadelphous for BHP Billiton Iron 
Ore’s Rapid Growth Project 4 at the 
Newman Hub, valued at around  
$290 million.

The Division has delivered against the 
Group’s strategic plan in securing the 
first major oil & gas construction project 
for Eni’s Blacktip Development Project 
(NT). Numerous mineral processing 
and coal wins at Boddington (WA), 
Dalrymple Bay (QLD) and Prominent 
Hill (SA) have continued to strengthen 
Monadelphous’ market presence and 
capabilities in these key commodity 
segments. Furthermore, the EC 
diversification strategy into water 
continued to evolve following the award 
of two projects at Bargara (QLD) and 
Lake Cathie-Bonny Hills (NSW).

Most pleasing has been our ability to 
continue to meet revenue and profit 
targets on large scale multi-disciplined 
engineering construction projects, 
a major achievement in the current 
climate. Engineering Construction 
revenue eased 12.4% this year to 
$576.0 million against $657.5 million  
in 2006/07.

Strategically, we have made long 
term commitments together with our 
clients to accelerate domestic capacity 
growth, lower costs and provide greater 
certainty around project delivery through 
various global procurement initiatives. To 
complement our Australian network of 
fabricators, we established a fabrication 
and pre-assembly management 
capability in China with a number of 
customers already utilising this service.

Importantly, continued investment in 
key systems, processes and people, 
coupled with substantial project 
wins, have laid a solid foundation for 
continued growth.

Key activities

During the past year, EC has 
successfully acted on a clear mandate 
to seek larger scale projects in iron 
ore, oil & gas and mineral processing 
with both existing and new clients. This 
approach is a fundamental platform of 
the Group’s strategic vision and is seen 
as a key driver of future growth at both 
the EC and Group levels.

The continued strategic focus on 
long term relationships with blue chip 
customers in our core markets was 
reinforced following the highly significant 
$290 million BHP Billiton Iron Ore Rapid 
Growth Project 4 Newman Hub  
contract win.

2008 576.0

2007 657.5

2006 289.3

2005 239.8

2004 109.6

Sales Revenue ($M)
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BHP Billiton Iron Ore,  
Rapid Growth Project 4 (RPG4), 
Newman WA

In March 2008, Monadelphous received 
a letter of intent from BHP Billiton Iron 
Ore for the provision of structural, 
mechanical and piping works at the 
Newman Hub. The agreement was 
the largest project ever awarded to 
Monadelphous and further endorsed  
our reputation and capacity for 
delivering large scale projects on  
time and to budget.

Furthermore, the Newman Hub contract 
reinforces the strength of our long 
term relationship with BHP Billiton 
Iron Ore. The origin of this relationship 
can be traced back to our historical 
links with BHP Billiton Iron Ore’s 
expansion programs at the Yandi II Mine 
Development Project in 1996.

We have also further developed our 
core market capabilities in oil & gas 
construction projects following the 
award of a major contract at Eni’s 
Blacktip Development project in the 
Northern Territory.

Eni Australia,  
Blacktip Development Project, 
Wadeye NT

In December 2007, Monadelphous 
secured a multi-disciplined contract 
with global energy company Eni. 
The contract represents a significant 
breakthrough into the oil & gas sector, 
in line with our strategic intent to 
consolidate our position in this market.

The Blacktip gas field is located 
in the Bonaparte Basin Timor Sea 
approximately 110 kilometres 
offshore from Northern Australia. The 
project involves the construction of 
an Onshore Gas Plant including the 
supply, fabrication, and assembly 
of approximately 3,000 tonnes of 
process modules. In addition to 
this, the project execution includes 
management of logistics, hook-up and 
pre-commissioning of the onshore gas 
treatment plant. 

The works are being undertaken at both 
the Monadelphous Darwin workshop 
and at the site assembly yard in Wadeye 
Northern Territory. Work commenced in 
early 2008 and is currently scheduled for 
completion in 2009.

In addition to iron ore and oil & gas, 
the mineral processing, coal and water 
markets are key growth areas pivotal 
to the achievement of the Company’s 
growth strategies.

With a strong presence and long track 
record of success our capability and 
infrastructure allows us to capitalise on 
mineral processing growth prospects, 
such as Boddington Gold Mine 
Management Company’s (BGMMC) 
Boddington Gold Mine Crushing and 
Screening facilities. The Division also 
completed work on the acid plant at 
BHP Billiton’s Ravensthorpe Nickel 
Operation. These contracts involve 
significant complexity including 
structural, mechanical and piping 
components. Despite the often remote 
and inhospitable project locations, 
we have continued to build on our 
exceptional safety record while efficiently 
expediting projects to completion.

Alongside significant project wins, 
we have retained our position at the 
forefront of innovative construction and 
project delivery methodologies. Through 
the China based SinoStruct fabrication 
initiative, we are now able to offer clients 
greater capacity and, in some cases, 
shorter lead times in a constrained 
domestic fabrication environment.

Operations in Focus - Engineering Construction (Continued)
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Another key highlight for the business 
during 2007/08 has been the 
increasing demand from customers 
for higher value vertically integrated 
packages of work including structural, 
mechanical, piping, and electrical and 
instrumentation components. During the 
year, collaborative efforts by the EC and 
MIE divisions resulted in the successful 
vertical execution of several jobs in 
different geographic locations.

Whilst recognising that contract wins 
and innovative delivery solutions are 
critical success factors we would not 
be able to sustain our industry leading 
position without the support of our 
exceptional people. During the past year 
a substantial investment has been made 
in reviewing all of the processes that 
impact on our people, which include 
examining the support provided by 
internal resources. This was carried out 
alongside the continued group-wide 
investment in people initiatives including 
recruitment, retention, training and 
development, competency assessment 
and career planning programs. Our 
corporate brand, strong reputation  
and unique workplace culture have also 
enabled the EC division and broader 
Group to successfully navigate the tight 
labour market over the past year.

Outlook 

The next phase in the ongoing 
development of the Engineering 
Construction division will involve further 
consolidation in existing markets such 
as iron ore, oil & gas, and mineral 
processing as well as expanding into 
new markets, industries and services as 
part of our diversification strategy.

Furthermore, we will seek to increase 
our geographical footprint into the 
Eastern states and South Australian 
markets in a bid to build a stable 
foundation for future expansion. South 
Australia is a high priority area and 
has significant potential for expansion. 
Securing the OZ Minerals Prominent Hill 
contract in November 2007 was a key 
strategic milestone for the Company 
and our position for future resource 
projects in this area. Monadelphous 
also recently established a new office 
in Adelaide affirming our long-term 
commitment to the State, maximising 
future opportunities and expanding our 
overall capacity. 

Maintaining strong relationships with 
key clients, including Rio Tinto and 
BHP Billiton, remains a high priority 
as we seek to retain our position as a 
contractor of choice. We will continue 
to capitalise on our exceptional safety 
culture and performance record with 
these clients. Key major projects in 
the coming year will include BHP 
Billiton’s Rapid Growth Project 4 at the 
Newman Hub, Rio Tinto’s Cape Lambert 
expansion project and Eni’s Blacktip 
Development project.

The consolidation activities, efforts and 
project wins during 2007/08 ensure we 
are well placed going into 2008/09, to 
both maintain our strong core market 
positions and diversify into new services 
and markets, ensuring continued 
sustainable growth well into the future.

Sales Contribution (%)

Engineering Construction: 59% 
Other: 41%
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HIsmelt Operations, Kwinana WA



|  20

Operations in Focus - Maintenance and Industrial Services

Highlights

-  High retention rates across all 
clients, contracts and sites

-  Successful integration of the 
Ellavale Engineering acquisition

-  Awarded over $200 million in new 
contracts and contract extensions

The Maintenance and Industrial Services 
division (M&IS) continued its outstanding 
contribution to the overall business 
performance this year. The Division’s 
clear focus of aligning activity with the 
long term strategic direction of the 
Group has continued to yield success 
amongst our customer base.

Central to the Division’s focus and 
ongoing strategy has been a three tiered 
approach to (a) retain all existing clients 
and contracts, (b) increase service 
volumes and (c) secure new sites and 
customers. This strategic focus has 
been fundamental to the success of the 
Maintenance and Industrial Services 
business for some time and continued 
in 2007/08.

The efforts of our team to deliver on 
customer expectations while maintaining 
and growing client relationships has 
been critical to our ongoing success. 
The Maintenance and Industrial Services 
division’s results for 2007/08 reflected 
both strong organic and acquisition 
growth as revenues expanded 20.6% 

to $316.7 million. 2007/08 included 
the first full year contribution from the 
Ellavale Engineering acquisition in 
March 2007. We are delighted with 
the performance of this business, its 
capability and its integration into our 
overall service offering.

During the year, the Division maintained 
a high retention rate across all clients, 
contracts and sites with service volumes 
increasing on existing contracts. The 
award of new contracts totalling over 
$100 million represents an important 
win for the business. These project 
wins with both BP and Anglo Coal 
in our core markets of oil & gas and 
coal further support our long term 
strategic plan. Furthermore, they also 
showcase our capacity to service large 
blue chip customers across a range of 
commodities, services and regions.

Finally, our continued focus on Health, 
Safety and Environment (HSE) outcomes 
and a rolling program of HSE initiatives 
has resulted in a consistent trend 
towards zero harm in the workforce. 
More broadly, in concert with community 
and customer expectations, we have 
taken action to mitigate our impact on 
the environment reporting environmental 
outcomes through the expansion of 
resources and focus in this arena.

Key activities

During the year, M&IS has improved 
critical internal systems and client 
reporting as well as undertaking 
substantial investments in our people. 
The Division has embarked on a 
comprehensive program to develop its 
people including various career planning 
initiatives, graduate development and 
leadership training.

Our long term relationship with BHP 
Billiton at the Olympic Dam site (SA) 
was also recently extended and 
represents an important long term 
strategic opportunity for the Division. 

“  Our ongoing focus on safety, customer satisfaction and financial performance supported by 

strong market conditions have resulted in continued business expansion ”  
– Arif Erdash, General Manager, M&IS Western Region

2008 316.7

2007 262.5

2006 207.5

2005 136.9

2004 108.0

Sales Revenue ($M)
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The Division is also leveraged to 
high growth markets with extensions 
received on key clients and contracts 
across a range of locations.

These included a three year extension 
at BHP Billiton’s Worsley Alumina 
Refinery (WA) and further extensions 
at Rio Tinto Alcan’s Boyne Smelters 
Limited aluminium smelter (QLD) and 
Rio Tinto Iron Ore sites (WA). In addition, 
our long term association at Rio Tinto’s 
HIsmelt Operations (WA) recently 
received a boost following a notice 
of review indicating a continuance of 
our long term relationship subject to a 
competitive commercial outcome for 
both parties.

All the Division’s other formal 
maintenance services contracts 
continued to perform strongly including 
those with Chevron, ConocoPhillips, 
Oil Search, Rio Tinto Alcan and Coal 
& Allied, managed by Rio Tinto Coal 
Australia. Other activities in the period 
included the Cyclone Fines Project for 
long term client Queensland Alumina 
Limited (QAL) at their Alumina Refinery 
in Gladstone (QLD). 

The Division has also embarked on 
a large program of maintenance, 
shutdowns (turnarounds) and capital 
works projects during the 2007/08 
period, including those with BHP Billiton 
(WA & NSW), Rio Tinto (WA, NSW & 
QLD), BP (WA & QLD), Chevron (WA), 
Incitec Pivot (QLD), Oil Search (PNG), 
Xstrata (QLD) and ConocoPhillips (NT).

A key strategic milestone was the 
establishment of our Townsville 
operation in north Queensland. We have 
established a local workshop facility 
and recruited a number of key people 
to kick start the business. Following 
on from major construction works 
recently undertaken for BHP Billiton 
at the Yabulu Nickel Refinery, we have 
been able to win a number of sustaining 
capital projects and importantly position 
ourselves for a long term relationship 
on site.

Subsequent to the reporting period, 
in July 2008, the Division won a long 
term shutdown alliance contract with 
Incitec Pivot across their operations 
in Queensland. This follows on from 
the success of the alliance contract 
with Incitec Pivot for the planning, 

management and execution of their 
Gibson Island (Brisbane) shutdown 
executed in February 2007.

The Division has also expanded its 
service offering with the establishment 
of an electrical and instrumentation 
capability. The aim of this initiative is 
to complement our existing offering 
through the provision of a full vertical 
package of maintenance and industrial 
services to meet customer needs. 
During 2007/08, this capability has 
successfully been established and has 
expanded to a number of customers 
and sites.

Finally, the Maintenance and Industrial 
Services division has now achieved 
critical market share in the oil & gas 
industrial services market after securing 
a number of new agreements including 
those with BP.

In October 2007, Monadelphous 
announced a new three year oil & 
gas services contract with BP for the 
provision of capital improvement and 
turnaround projects at the Kwinana 
Refinery south of Perth, WA. 

Operations in Focus - Maintenance and Industrial Services (Continued)

P&H 9020 Dragline, Mount Thorley NSW
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Aside from its financial significance, the 
contract represented a substantial entry 
into one of BP’s two Australian refinery 
sites as a key service contractor.

The BP Kwinana Refinery contract 
provides a long term program of 
works for the Division and is further 
endorsement of our growing capabilities 
in the oil & gas industrial services 
market. It also supports the Group 
strategic plan of establishing long  
term relationships with new blue  
chip customers.

The initial BP Kwinana Refinery 
announcement was followed, in 
December 2007, by a second major  
oil & gas services contract with BP  
at its other Australian refinery in 
Brisbane, QLD.

The BP Bulwer Island Refinery contract 
is a performance based agreement for 
multi-project construction services with 
an initial term of five years. The contract 
involves the provision of mechanical, 
electrical and instrumentation services 
for capital improvement projects.

Outlook

Following strong revenue growth 
across 2007/08, retention of all key 
customers, contracts and sites and a 
number of significant new client wins, 
the Maintenance and Industrial Services 
division is well placed to continue to 
expand into 2008/09.

We anticipate a continuing focus on 
safety outcomes, customer satisfaction 
and financial performance will also 
further support future expansion 
opportunities. Furthermore, continued 
investment in our people, processes, 
systems and overall capabilities is 
expected to have a positive impact 
on our customers and ultimately our 
competitive position.

In the coming year, the Division will 
remain absolutely committed to retaining 
all existing clients and contracts, 
increase service volumes and secure 
new sites and customers. It is expected 
this approach will continue to support 
the Division’s ongoing development for 
some time into the future.

Looking ahead, the Maintenance and 
Industrial Services division is expected 
to grow its contribution to the Group 
providing a strong, stable and growing 
recurring revenue base. Where 
appropriate, acquisitions will continue to 
support the Division’s capability, growth 
profile and ultimately its competitive 
position.

More broadly, continued development 
of the productive capacity of Australia’s 
resource, energy and infrastructure 
sectors will support organic growth 
opportunities for the Division.

Sales Contribution (%)

Maintenance & Industrial Services : 32% 
Other: 68%
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Dalrymple Bay Coal Terminal, Mackay QLD
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Highlights

-  Business consolidation and 
expansion into WA

-  Awarded first major WA contract 
with the Boddington Gold Mine 
Expansion Project

-  Achieved over 1 million hours  
Lost Time Injury (LTI) free  

The MIE division consolidated its 
position following last year’s rapid 
growth. The Division recorded sales 
revenue of $76.0 million in 2007/08, 
up 5.9 per cent on the previous 
corresponding period.

A major highlight of the year was the 
establishment of MIE operations in 
Western Australia which enabled the 
delivery of electrical and instrumentation 
services for a number of the  
Engineering Construction division’s 
multi-disciplinary projects.

In March 2008, the Company 
announced that MIE had won its first 
major project in the Western Australian 
resources market. MIE was awarded a 
$25 million electrical and instrumentation 
contract associated with the Boddington 
Gold Mine Expansion Project. The 
award of this contract is a positive 
reinforcement of our decision to expand 
MIE’s operations in Western Australia 
and will provide a strong foundation  
for growth.

MIE has also been able to sustain 
steady growth across the year in spite 
of project delays impacting on divisional 
revenue. During 2007/08, substantial 
efforts have been made in reviewing all 
facets of our operation in preparation for 
the next phase of growth.  

This process has placed MIE in a 
stronger position to capitalise on future 
opportunities throughout 2008/09 and 
beyond.

Key Activities

Projects carried out during the period 
included a number of major electrical 
and instrumentation contracts 
associated with the expansion of coal 
handling operations at Gladstone Ports 
Corporation (GPC) and Dalrymple Bay 
Coal Terminal (DBCT) in Queensland. 

At DBCT, MIE was involved in the 
management, coordination and delivery 
of three concurrent projects, (IL1, IL2 
and IL3) including large scale shutdowns 
and a highly complex service offering.  
Alongside Engineering Constuction 
(EC), the MIE division also undertook a 
number of vertically integrated packages 
of work including at the Bargara Waste 
Water Treatment Plant (Bundaberg, 
QLD) and BHP Billiton Iron Ore’s Rapid 
Growth Project 4 at Yandi (WA).

MIE has also made a substantial 
contribution to the Group’s market 
development strategy. This was 
particularly true in the signing of the 
Boddington Gold Mine Management 
Company (BGMMC) Boddington 
Gold Mine Expansion Project which 
represents a very significant  
growth opportunity.

BGMMC, Boddington  
Gold Mine Expansion Project, 
Boddington WA

In March 2008, MIE was awarded a 
$25 million contract associated with 
the Boddington Gold Mine Expansion 
Project located 120 kilometres south 
east of Perth. Significant as the first 
major Western Australian contract for 
MIE, the project involves electrical and 
instrumentation installation for major 
expansion of the plant’s dry area.

Alongside other divisions, MIE has also 
played a key role in offering innovative 
and expanded service solutions for 

clients across the Group including full 
vertical service packages into new 
markets. This has been particularly 
successful in the BHP Billiton Iron Ore 
Yandi and Eni Blacktip development 
projects. The MIE multi-faceted 
service capability gives us a significant 
competitive advantage which will assist 
in the ongoing procurement of these 
types of projects, benefiting the  
entire Group. 

Outlook

Looking ahead we will aim to deliver 
against the anticipated levels of growth 
within the iron ore, oil & gas, coal 
and mineral processing markets. The 
MIE division will seek to leverage and 
execute larger scale projects, particularly 
within oil & gas, following on from 
project wins such as the Eni Blacktip 
Development Project.

While growth and expansion 
opportunities will largely drive divisional 
activity, protection of the existing coal 
market in Queensland is seen as critical. 
In addition, expansion opportunities 
into New South Wales coal mine and 
port developments along with mineral 
processing in South Australia will be 
aggressively pursued. 

The aggregate of these strategies,  
as well as expanding industry demand 
more broadly, are expected to deliver 
significant opportunities for new work 
and strong revenue growth for MIE.

Operations in Focus -

2008 76.0

2007 71.8

2006 26.0

2005 6.6

Sales Revenue ($M)

Sales Contribution (%)

MIE : 8% 
Other: 92%

“  After nearly trebling sales last year, the MIE division has continued to consolidate its market 

position while entering and expanding into the key WA market ”  
–  Stuart Murray, General Manager, MIE
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Highlights

-  Largest single contract signed with 
Jetstar in Darwin

-  Successful divestment of the 
Perth and Brisbane international 
turnaround operations

-  Strong ‘on time performance’  
was maintained

-  Safety performance continued to 
improve across the business

Key activities

In December 2007, Monadelphous 
announced its intention to divest part 
of its Skystar Airport Services (Skystar) 
operations to Toll Dnata Airport 
Services. The sale agreement included 
all contracts, staff, equipment and 
facilities in the passenger and ramp 
aircraft handling businesses in Perth 
and Brisbane with international carriers 
Singapore Airlines, Emirates and Royal 
Brunei Airlines. The divestment was 
finalised on 4 January 2008.

Our remaining Skystar business has 
continued normal operations, focussing 
on service delivery excellence to our key 
customer, the Qantas Group.

Skystar was awarded the Jetstar 
contract in Darwin in February 2008. 
The contract involves the provision 
of ground handling services including 
check-in and ticketing functions, 
passenger embarkation/disembarkation, 
baggage handling and freight loading 
and unloading. The award of this 
contract is of strategic significance as 
Darwin is poised to become a regional 
gateway to South East Asia with strong 
growth prospects.

Skystar has also continued to achieve 
strong operational performance for the 
financial year which is reflected in ‘on 
time performance’ being an impressive 
99.2%. In addition, Skystar handled over 
two million passengers and over  
10,000 aircraft during 2007/08.

Most pleasing has been the 
improvement in our safety performance, 
with a reduction in our TCIFR of 64% 
over the last year and over 80% over 
the last two years. In February 2008, 
we achieved a significant milestone of 
500,000 hours lost time injury (LTI) free. 
These achievements are a reflection  
of the exceptional safety culture that  
the Skystar team has developed in 
recent years.

Outlook

It is clear that fuel prices are having a 
significant impact on current decision 
making by participants in the aviation 
industry, the full impact of which 
continues to evolve.

Moving forward, we will increasingly look 
to capitalise on our strong relationships 
within the industry and look to offset 
the uncertainty posed by rising global 
fuel prices. In addition, we will look to 
capitalise on growth opportunities with 
the Qantas Group as a key customer.

What is clear is that Skystar’s divestment 
activities and new contract awards 
during 2007/08 have strengthened our 
position to facilitate future growth.

“  The past year has seen a continuation of our strong operational performance and a  
significant improvement in our safety performance, whilst consolidating the business to 
provide focus around our key customer, the Qantas Group ”   
– Paul Brown, Operations Manager, Skystar Airport Services

Operations in Focus - 

2008 14.7

2007 19.2

2006 14.8

2005 7.3

2004 3.1

Sales Contribution (%)

Skystar: 1% 
Other: 99%

Sales Revenue ($M)
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Our Locations

Historical snapshot

Since 1991, Monadelphous has been 
carving a unique place for itself in the 
landscape of truly great Australian 
owned engineering companies.  
During this time, we have overcome 
the uncertainties inherent in commodity 
markets and changing economic 
landscapes, to emerge as a key 
player in the provision of construction, 
maintenance and industrial  
service solutions.

Monadelphous operates major offices 
in Perth, Brisbane, Adelaide and 
Beijing, and continues to focus on the 
development of regional engineering 
support operations. This approach 
places us in a unique position to 
maximise our core business and 
diversify into key industry sectors  
around Australasia.

Alongside the growth in our business, 
employee numbers continue to 
expand along with our blue chip client 
list including Alcoa, BHP Billiton, BP, 
Chevron, Rio Tinto and Xstrata  
amongst others.

During 2007/08, our position as a 
leading national engineering firm 
received a further boost following a 
raft of major iron ore, oil & gas, coal, 
mineral processing and water contract 
announcements. These contracts 
cover a vast geographic footprint 
demonstrating our broad commodity 
and service capabilities.

Future position

Looking ahead, demand for Australian 
resources continues to drive major 
project developments. Iron ore 
expansions in WA, coal expansions 
in Queensland and LNG expansions 
nationally are expected to be a dominant 
feature of the market for many years  
to come.

Monadelphous is well positioned to play 
a major role in the opportunities flowing 
from these development projects.

“  From humble beginnings, Monadelphous has continued to expand and diversify its 
geographic, commodity, client and service footprint to attain the pre-eminent position we  
hold today ” –  John Rubino, Chairman
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Beijing

2007/08 Work Locations
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Customer Project Name State Location Commodity Description

Babcock and Brown 
Infrastructure (BBI)

Dalrymple Bay Coal Terminal - R8 
and S8 Conveyors 

QLD Mackay Coal 
Structural, mechanical and electrical work 
for new stockpile conveyors (with MIE) 

BHP Billiton
Rapid Growth Project 3  
- Mining Area C

WA Newman Iron Ore 
Expansion of iron ore crushing and 
screening facilities 

BHP Billiton Rapid Growth Project 3 WA Port Hedland Iron Ore 
Upgrade of existing port inloading, 
stockpiling and shiploading facilities

BHP Billiton
Rapid Growth Project 4  
- Newman Hub

WA Newman Iron Ore
Structural, mechanical and piping works 
associated with the new stockpiling and 
processing facility

BHP Billiton Rapid Growth Project 4 WA Port Hedland Iron Ore 
Upgrade of existing port facilities and 
refurbishment/upgrade of car dumpers 
1 and 2

BHP Billiton Rapid Growth Project 4 WA Yandi Iron Ore 
Structural, mechanical, electrical and civil 
works (with MIE) 

BHP Billiton
Ravensthorpe Commissioning 
Assistance 

WA Ravensthorpe Nickel Structural, mechanical and piping works 

BHP Billiton Mitsubishi 
Alliance (BMA)

Hay Point Coal Terminal Expansion 
- Phase 1 

QLD Mackay Coal 
Structural, mechanical, electrical and civil 
works for coal conveyor system  
(with MIE) 

Boddington Gold Mine 
Management Company

Boddington Gold Mine Expansion WA Boddington Gold 
Structural, mechanical and piping work 
for the dry processing area 

Bundaberg Regional 
Council

Bargara Waste Water Treatment 
Plant Upgrade 

QLD Bundaberg Water 
Structural, electrical, piping and civil 
works (with MIE) 

CSBP 
Ammonium Nitrate Expansion 
Project 

WA Kwinana Chemical Structural, mechanical and piping works 

Eni 
Blacktip Development Project  
- Onshore Gas Plant Construction 

NT Wadeye Oil & Gas 
Supply, fabrication, construction and  
pre-commissioning of the on-shore 
facility (with MIE) 

OZ Minerals Prominent Hill Gold Mine SA Prominent Hill Gold Structural, mechanical and piping works 

Port Macquarie-
Hastings Council

Lake Cathie / Bonny Hills  
Sewerage Treatment Plant 

NSW Port Macquarie Water

Construction of the Lake Cathie 
Bonny Hills Sewerage Treatment Plant 
Augmentation including the design 
and construciton of a Recycled Water 
Membrane Filtration Plant

Rio Tinto
Cape Lambert Capacity 
Enhancement Project

WA Cape Lambert Iron Ore Structural, mechanical and piping works

Rio Tinto
Cape Lambert Mesa A Dust 
Suppression Works

WA Cape Lambert Iron Ore
Dust suppression works associated with 
the Mesa A mine expansion

Rio Tinto Cape Lambert Upgrade 80 mtpa WA Cape Lambert Iron Ore Structural, mechanical and piping works 

Rio Tinto Dampier Port Upgrade Phase B WA Dampier Iron Ore 
Installation of rail car dumper, transfer 
stations, conveyors and piping works 

Rio Tinto 
Yandi Junction South East  
Expansion Project 

WA Yandicoogina Iron Ore 
Expansion of iron ore tertiary crushing 
and screening facilities 

Rio Tinto 
Yandi Junction South East  
Expansion Project 

WA Yandicoogina Iron Ore 
Construction of the JSE primary and 
secondary crushing facility 

Water Corporation Wyndham Water Treatment Plant WA Wyndham Water 
Design and construction of a  
micro-filtration plant (with MIE) 

   

Engineering Construction Projects



Customer Project Name State Location Commodity Description

Alcoa Operations Labour Hire Services WA 
Kwinana, 
Pinjarra, 
Wagerup 

Alumina 
Supply of tradespeople, operators and 
labourers 

Anglo Coal 
Coal Handling Preparation  
Plant Maintenance 

QLD Moura Coal 
Supply of mechanical and electrical 
maintenance and labour support for 
CHPP maintenance 

BHP Billiton 
Ravensthorpe Nickel Maintenance 
and Minor Capital Projects 

WA Ravensthorpe Nickel 
Maintenance, capital works and 
shutdown services 

BHP Billiton Olympic Dam Maintenance Services SA Roxby Downs 
Copper and 
Uranium 

Maintenance services contract 

Boyne Smelters Ltd 
(Rio Tinto Aluminium) 

Mechanical Trades Services QLD Gladstone Aluminium 
Mechanical maintenance and project 
works 

BP Bulwer Island Multi-Project Construction Services QLD Brisbane Oil & gas Maintenance services contract 

BP Kwinana Refinery Turnarounds and Capital Projects WA Kwinana Oil & gas On site services contract 

Chevron 
Barrow and Thevenard Islands 
General Maintenance Contract and 
Barrow Island Waterflood Network 

WA 
Barrow and 
Thevenard 
Islands 

Oil & gas 
General maintenance services contract 
and waterflood projects 

ConocoPhillips 
Darwin LNG Maintenance  
Services Contract 

NT Darwin Oil & gas 
Structural, mechanical, piping, 
civil, electrical and instrumentation 
maintenance 

HIsmelt Operations 
Shutdowns, Minor Works and 
Supplementary Maintenance 

WA Kwinana Pig Iron Shutdowns and maintenance 

NT Power & Water 
Corporation 

Channel Island Power Station 
Shutdown and Project Work 

NT Darwin 
Power and 
Water 

Structural, mechanical and piping 
projects and shutdown services 

Oil Search Limited Field Facilities Construction Services PNG
Papua New 
Guinea 

Oil & gas Structural and piping work 

Rio Tinto 
Cape Lambert Operations 
- Structural Integrity Project 

WA Cape Lambert Iron Ore Structural repair work 

Rio Tinto 
Tom Price Operations 
- Structural Integrity Project 

WA Tom Price Iron Ore Structural repair work 

Rio Tinto 
Paraburdoo - Structural Integrity  
and Minor Projects 

WA Paraburdoo Iron Ore Structural repair and minor project work 

Queensland Alumina 
Limited (QAL) 

Maintenance and Minor Capital 
Projects 

QLD Gladstone Alumina 
Structural, mechanical and piping 
projects 

Redbank Power Maintenance Projects NSW Warkworth Power 
Maintenance support services and plant 
shutdowns 

Rio Tinto Aluminium  
– Yarwun 

Operations Services QLD Gladstone Alumina 
Maintenance, capital works and 
shutdown services (through Fluor 
Monadelphous Services) 

Rio Tinto Coal and 
Allied 

Hunter Valley Operations 
Maintenance and Shutdown Services 

NSW Singleton Coal 
Maintenance support, dragline and 
shovel shutdown services 

Worsley Alumina Minor Works WA Collie Alumina Capital project services

Xstrata Lead/Zinc Maintenance Projects QLD Mount Isa Lead/Zinc 
Structural, mechanical and piping 
projects and shutdown services 

Maintenance and Industrial Services Projects
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Electrical and Instrumentation Projects 

Customer Project Name State Location Commodity Description

Babcock and Brown 
Infrastructure BBI 
(DBCT) Management

Dalrymple Bay Coal Terminal  
- R8 and S8 Conveyors 

QLD Mackay Coal 
Structural, mechanical and electrical work 
for new stockpile conveyors (with EC) 

BHP Billiton Rapid Growth Project 4 WA Yandi Iron Ore 
Structural, mechanical, electrical and civil 
works (with EC) 

BHP Billiton Mitsubishi 
Alliance (BMA)

Hay Point Coal Terminal Expansion 
- Phase 1 

QLD Mackay Coal 
Structural, mechanical, electrical and civil 
works for coal conveyor system  
(with EC) 

Boddington Gold Mine 
Management Company 

Boddington Gold Mine Expansion WA Boddington Gold 
Electrical and instrumentation services 
for the construction of the dry processing 
area 

Bundaberg Regional 
Council

Bargara Waste Water Treatment 
Plant Upgrade 

QLD Bundaberg Water 
Structural, electrical, piping and civil 
works (with EC) 

CopperCo Lady Annie Copper SXEW Project QLD Mount Isa Copper 
Electrical and instrumentation services for 
the construction of the process plant 

Eni 
Blacktip Development Project  
- Onshore Gas Plant Construction 

NT Wadeye Oil & Gas 
Supply, fabrication, construction and  
pre-commissioning of the on-shore 
facility (with EC) 

McConnell Dowell 
Dalrymple Bay Coal Terminal Phase 1 
Expansion Project 

QLD Mackay Coal 
Electrical and instrumentation services for 
the inloading upgrade 

Origin Energy Taloona Gas Plant Project QLD Roma Oil & Gas 
Electrical and instrumentation installation 
of new natural gas compression plant

Water Corporation Wyndham Water Treatment Plant WA Wyndham Water 
Design and construction of a micro-
filtration plant (with EC) 
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Our People, Culture and Values

Highlights

-  Conducted a review of the ‘Right 
People’ strategy to ensure that the 
right people resources are attracted 
and retained to maximise the future 
business opportunities

-  Continued to achieve high 
employee retention rates in excess 
of 90% for high impact roles across 
the business

-  Conducted our most successful 
Graduate recruitment campaign, 
attracting over 1,000 applicants 
across the engineering and 
accounting disciplines

Monadelphous remains focussed on 
attracting and retaining the right people.  
The People Strategy Review involved 
consultation with key stakeholders to 
detail the progression required in this 
area in order to meet our growth targets. 
Outcomes from the People Strategy 
Review, on the back of the Group 
strategic review, will ensure a continued 
strong alignment between people and 
company growth. 

With the aim of aligning Group 
strategic growth plans and people 
requirements, the People Strategy 
Review was focussed on the future. 
However, at the same time the HR 
Team has continued to successfully 
execute the Monadelphous people 
attraction and retention strategies. 
During the last 12 months, ongoing 
national and international recruitment 
campaigns have achieved further 
market awareness and highlighted the 
Company as an attractive employment 
option. Our recruitment resources have 
demonstrated commitment and resolve 
in a very tight labour market. While 
turnover of employees in general has 
been slightly below industry norms, we 
have been successful in retaining our 
high impact employees which are critical 
to building on our success.  

We have achieved this through a 
combination of cultural engagement, 
reward and recognition, and genuine 
development opportunities. The 
challenge is to ensure that this focus on 
People Leadership is instilled at all levels  
of the Company.

Key activities
Attraction

-  Participated in national recruitment 
exhibitions and associated events in 
WA, SA, VIC, NSW, TAS and QLD.

-  Increased marketing activities to 
build stronger market awareness and 
present Monadelphous as a solid 
employment option.

-  Continued to successfully implement 
international recruitment initiatives in a 
number of countries including South 
Africa, UK, New Zealand,  
South America, Singapore and  
the Philippines.

-  Reviewed and relaunched the 
Monadelphous Employee Referral 
Program company wide, to encourage 
and reward employees to refer new 
people to join Monadelphous.

-  Conducted an assessment of the 
Monadelphous employer brand to 
focus future recruitment  
marketing efforts.

-  Established assessment centres for 
potential Engineering Graduates, 
which provided a more rigorous 
assessment of skills and abilities 
and enabled offers to be made more 
promptly to Graduates in a very 
dynamic graduate market.

-  Increased the number of dedicated 
recruitment resources across  
all divisions.

-  Establishment of a Project 
Recruitment Team in Engineering 
Construction to work closely with  
the Division in recruiting for key  
project roles.

Retention

-  Conducted a cultural survey as a 
follow up to the 2005 survey. The 
follow up survey was positive when 
considering Company growth since 
2005, but still highlighted areas for 
attention including communication, 
people leadership, development of 
people and a greater awareness for 
the environment.

-  Increased the range of leadership 
development initiatives with the 
annual leadership and management 
development program being 
maintained, along with the introduction 
of emerging leaders training, 
interaction skills training for managers 
and supervisors, supervisory 
development for frontline supervisors 
in maintenance and construction,  
and development profiles for senior 
management.

-  Reviewed the Monadelphous Values 
to better align our stated values 
to the culture that has made the 
Company successful. These values 
are embedded in all HR practices.

-  Evolved our reward and recognition 
strategies through increased 
remuneration benchmarking, 
improving the salary review system 
and looking at further enhancements 
of our reward options.

-  Implemented a new HR Information 
System in order to boost enterprise 
productivity and online services  
offered to employees.

Outlook
The market for labour will continue to 
tighten as numerous resources, energy 
and infrastructure sector projects come 
online. People remain both the key risk 
and opportunity for the Company.  

Building on the success of our attraction 
and retention strategies will be critical 
in delivering the growth objectives 
of the business. The successful 
implementation of the outcomes from 
the People Strategy Review will be 
central to this development.

“  In order to thrive in the current labour market rather than simply survive, people strategies 
have to drive boardroom decision making. We have worked tirelessly to ensure our people 
and business strategies are closely aligned. We know that meeting our growth projections 
depends on it ” – Zoran Bebic, General Manager, Business Services
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Health, Safety and Environment

Highlights

-  Group safety performance 
improved 32% over the period

-  Continued investment in HSE 
education, training and systems  
at all levels

-  Achievement of WorkSafe WA Plans 
highest level ‘Platinum’ award for 
both the EC and M&IS divisions

Monadelphous has delivered 
another year of exceptional safety 
performance and management across 
all divisions in 2007/08. A remarkable 
32% improvement in group safety 
performance has been achieved, 
reflecting the level of committed 
compliance that exists across the 
Group. Delivering such an improvement 
can be directly attributed to our effective 
Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) 
systems and tools which are firmly 
embedded in every aspect of our 
operations and brought to life through 
strong safety leadership and culture.

The success of this improvement and 
the effectiveness of our HSE systems 
has been recognised through the 
award of WorkSafe WA Plans highest 
‘Platinum’ level for both the Engineering 
Construction (EC) and Maintenance and 
Industrial Services (M&IS) divisions.

The EC division also achieved 
certification to the AS 4801 Australian 
and New Zealand Standards for 
Occupational Health and Safety 
Management Systems (OHSMS) and the 
ISO 14001 international Environmental 
Management Systems (EMS) standards. 
We will continue to make further 
progress towards the achievement of 
group wide certification in 2008/09.

Key activities

Monadelphous has long held an 
enviable reputation as an industry leader 
in regard to our safety record.  
Preserving that reputation requires 
ongoing effort and vigilance, and 
continual improvement of safety 
performance. Maintaining systems 
that reflect industry best practice is 
essential to this, and consequently 
there has been continuing investment 
in a detailed review and analysis of all 
our safety procedures, manuals and 
documentation during 2007/08.

Effective implementation of these 
system enhancements is another  
critical element of continuous 
improvement. Hence, there has been 
continuing significant investment in 
training of employees and particularly 
leaders in safety management systems.

The final key aspect of ensuring 
continuous improvement is in analysis 
and reporting tools that allow the 
identification of problem areas and 
development of effective solutions. 
Phase 1 of the implementation of 
a contemporary health, safety and 
environment data management tool  
was completed towards the end of 
2007/08. This system will provide 
improved tracking of incidents, root 
cause analysis, corrective action 
development, verification of  
solution effectiveness, reporting  
and trend analysis.

A key feature of our business has been 
in the sharing of learnings across our 
operations and with customers. 
Due to the breadth of our operations, 
we are able to bring the best of HSE 
practices to our customers. In addition 
to the application of those learnings 
through our operations in 2007/08, 
we continued with heath, safety and 
environment conferences across 
Australia where we shared learnings  
and innovations with our customers.

There has been substantial investment 
in the people responsible for developing 
and leading our HSE strategy in 
2007/08, with key appointments and 
training initiatives. This is expected to 
support future business growth whilst 
continuing to maintain and improve  
HSE performance. 

In response to growing community 
expectation of excellence in 
environmental management and 
continuing reduction of environmental 
impact, a dedicated Environmental 
Officer has been appointed within 
the Group HSE department. Whilst 
Monadelphous has been reducing,  
re-using and recycling for some time,  
a structured and consistent application 
of initiatives is anticipated to drive further 
improvement. The focus of this role is 
to continue to facilitate and improve 
systems and initiatives in environmental 
management across all areas of  
our business.

Going beyond statutory compliance 
requirements, Monadelphous has 
initiated a carbon foot assessment  
with the objective of quantifying carbon 
emissions and to proactively identify 
opportunities for ongoing improvement.

Outlook

Maintaining our excellent reputation 
for safety and environmental 
management, and achieving greater 
levels of performance will remain our 
key focus moving forward. To achieve 
this we are engaging world leading 
safety consultants, DuPont Safety 
Resources, to assess our HSE systems, 
management, and culture in our quest 
for zero harm.

We are confident the substantial 
investments made over the last year in 
our people, processes and training will 
produce quantifiable benefits for our 
stakeholders across 2008/09  
and beyond.

 “  Health, safety and environmental performance at Monadelphous transcends regulatory 
requirements. Our organisation prides itself on committed compliance meaning we follow 
HSE rules and systems because we believe they help keep us safe. They are embedded in 
the cultural practice of our day to day operations ”  – Jason Lamb, Group Manager, HSE
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Highlights

-  Establishment of the Monadelphous 
Integrated Learning Centre with UWA

-  Financial & practical support for 
regional & indigenous communities 

-  Continued support for the Living 
Works Suicide Prevention program

At Monadelphous we are committed to 
supporting and being active members of 
the communities in which we operate. 
Continued grass roots financial and 
practical support for local endeavours is 
the most powerful way for our Company 
to positively impact these communities. 

This focus can both benefit our people 
who live and work there as well as 
leave a lasting legacy on the broader 
community. Our staff are committed to 
these principles, often giving of their 
own time to actively contribute to the 
communities in which they work.

During 2007/08 we continued to apply 
these principles, sponsoring local 
community sporting teams, providing 
funding for school equipment and 
sponsoring local community events. 

An example is our continued association 
with the Living Works Suicide Prevention 
Program in the Pilbara region of 
Western Australia. This year, our annual 
Monadelphous Golf Day and charity 
auction dinner enabled us to contribute 
more than $35,000 to Living Works. 

This critical funding will help to ensure 
the program’s ongoing viability in this 
isolated region. 

During the period we continued our 
association with BHP Billiton and 
Apprenticeships Australia in indigenous 
support programs providing on-the-job 
training, in alignment with vocational 
training competencies; day-to-day 
supervision and daily feedback to 
trainees. The successful completion 
of these programs, such as the Port 
Hedland based PINGKU Indigenous 
Traineeship Program, means graduates 
are ready to consider full time 
construction job opportunities in  
the areas of concreting, scaffolding, 
rigging, general trades and 
apprenticeship opportunities. 

Monadelphous also actively supports 
our industry, sponsoring activities 
such as those by Engineers Australia 
which seek to improve the quality 
and knowledge base of engineering 
professionals. Of significance is our long 
term support of an important community 
project, the Monadelphous Integrated 
Learning Centre (ILC) in Perth. 

Monadelphous  
Integrated Learning Centre
Monadelphous and the University 
of Western Australia (UWA) signed 
a partnership agreement to create 
an innovative educational facility for 

engineering students. As the key 
delivery partner, we will play a critical 
role in the creation and operation of 
a world class education facility to be 
known as the Monadelphous Integrated 
Learning Centre.

The Monadelphous ILC will provide a 
unique environment for undergraduate 
students, one that supports project 
based learning, collaboration, leadership 
and innovation. Commencing operations 
in mid-2009, it will be located in the 
heart of the engineering precinct at 
UWA. The Monadelphous ILC will 
mimic the industry workplace and will 
include workspaces and offices suitable 
for team based project work as well 
as interaction with industry mentors 
and project leaders. It will also include 
design, manufacturing and prototype 
testing areas along with presentation 
facilities and meeting areas for team 
interactions. The operation and 
management of the Monadelphous ILC 
will be largely controlled by the students 
themselves, giving them ownership and 
pride in the new facility.

Our involvement with this project is part 
of a practical solution to help meet the 
increasing demand for engineers by 
ensuring that the next generation are as 
job-ready as possible. Importantly, this 
investment aims to positively contribute 
to our community by helping to develop 
future industry leaders.

Our Community 

“  Providing grass roots support to local endeavours can powerfully impact communities ” 
- Giles Everist, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
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Highlights

-  A review & rollout of the 5-year 
group strategic plan

-  Record level of new contracts and 
contract extensions (over $900m)

-  Group organic growth expected to 
resume in 2008/09

2007/08 has been a year of 
consolidation for Monadelphous as the 
business focussed on strengthening 
its long term competitive position 
within existing commodity, service and 
geographic areas, diversifying into new 
markets while laying the foundations for 
continued business growth.

Strategy

Twelve months ago the Company 
anticipated that 2007/08 was to be a 
year of consolidation. Central to this 
consolidation story has been a strategic 
review of the business to ensure the 
organisational framework and priorities 
will support future market development. 
Following the Group-wide review, 
there is a clear road map to deliver on 
our strategic purpose and vision for 
the business over the next five years. 
This road map and overarching group 
strategic plan is based on five key 
elements including growth, culture, 
systems, structure and supply.

Monadelphous has continued to 
focus on its most important strategy in 
2007/08, the people recruitment and 
retention drive. Over the coming year, 
ongoing development of innovative 
strategies around recruitment and 
retention will take an even higher priority.

Across all divisions, there is a clear 
mandate to maximise business growth 
in core markets, diversify into new 
markets and utilise acquisitions to 
support the Company’s longer term 
strategic development. In response 
to this mandate, the Engineering 
Construction (EC) division has expanded 
its management structure. 

A customer market sector based 
structure has been established with key 
people appointed to focus on separate 
markets for iron ore, mineral processing, 
oil & gas, and water.

Furthermore, EC has also established a 
dedicated new business development 
unit to focus on emerging markets 
and support our market development 
strategies.

Across 2007/08, we have also 
successfully continued to diversify 
our business model in a measured, 
profitable and client focussed manner. 
During this period, we have made 
significant progress on our market 
development and diversification strategy 
expanding by geography, commodity, 
client and service.

On the commodity diversification side, 
Maintenance and Industrial Services has 
embarked on a significant expansion 
in its oil & gas capabilities following the 
BP Kwinana Refinery (WA) and Bulwer 
Island (QLD) capital improvement project 
wins. 2007/08 was also a watershed 
year for the MIE business, following 
both its entry into the WA market 
and securing a substantial electrical 
and instrumentation package at the 
Boddington Gold Mine in March 2008. 
This win signifies an important step for 
Monadelphous towards delivering on 
large scale, vertically integrated projects 
to the market place. 

The Engineering Construction division 
also significantly expanded its service 
offering to key customers through the 
establishment and commencement of 
an offshore fabrication management 
and pre-assembly capability in China. 
Through the China based SinoStruct 
initiative, Monadelphous can now 
offer clients greater capacity and, in 
some cases, shorter lead times in 
a constrained domestic fabrication 
environment.

Outlook

Following the high volume of contracts 
won and consolidation activities across 
2007/08, Monadelphous will enter 
2008/09 in a stronger position than that 
at the start of 2007/08.

In addition, the Company’s business 
consolidation, group expansion and 
strategic activities across 2007/08 
have positioned Monadelphous with a 
stronger, more integrated client offering. 

We anticipate this evolution in our 
business model will continue to support 
our strategic plan while maintaining our 
status as a truly great company to work 
for, work with and invest in.

Concentrating on earnings quality, 
winning the people war and increasing 
capacity through more innovative project 
delivery methods will continue to be key 
focuses for the Company in 2008/09.

The outlook for the longer term 
continues to be very positive. The 
sustained high level of global demand 
for Australian resources continues to 
drive strong market conditions across 
the entire resources, energy and 
infrastructure sectors. 

Iron ore expansions in WA, coal 
expansions in Queensland and LNG 
expansions nationally are expected to 
be a dominant feature of the market for 
many years to come and Monadelphous 
is well positioned to play a major role  
in the opportunities flowing from  
these developments.

Strategy and Outlook
“  Our continued strategic focus to maximise returns from core markets and diversify into new 

markets across 2007/08 has positioned us for positive growth into the new financial year. 
The outlook for the longer term continues to be very positive ”  
- Chris Tabrett, General Manager, Group Development and Marketing



  41  |  2008 Annual Report



F inanc ia l  Statements

Corporate Directory 43

Company Performance 44

Directors’ Report                                                     45

Independent Audit Report 56

Directors’ Declaration 58

Income Statement 59

Balance Sheet 60

Statement of Changes in Equity 61

Cash Flow Statement 62

Notes to and forming part of the 63 
Financial Statements

Corporate Governance Statement 106

Investor Information 111



43: Annual Report Financial Statements | Monadelphous 2008 

Corporate Directory

Directors

Calogero Giovanni Battista Rubino
Chairman

Robert Velletri
Managing Director

Irwin Tollman
Non-Executive Director

Peter John Dempsey
Non-Executive Director

Christopher Percival Michelmore
Non-Executive Director

company secretaries

Charles Roland Giles Everist
Philip Trueman

principal registereD office in australia

1 - 7 Sleat Road
APPLECROSS
Western Australia 6153
Telephone: 08 9316 1255
Facsimile: 08 9316 1950
Website:  www.monadelphous.com.au

postal aDDress

PO Box 365
APPLECROSS
Western Australia 6953

share registry

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
Level 2, 45 St George’s Terrace
PERTH   
Western Australia 6000
Telephone: 1300 557 010
Facsimile: 08 9323 2033

asX coDe
MND   -   Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

auDitors

Ernst & Young
The Ernst & Young Building
11 Mounts Bay Road
PERTH
Western Australia 6000

solicitors

Jackson McDonald
Level 25, 140 St George’s Terrace
PERTH 
Western Australia 6000

DLA Phillips Fox
Level 32, St Martins Tower
44 St George’s Terrace
PERTH 
Western Australia 6000

Minter Ellison
Level 49, Central Park
152 St George’s Terrace
PERTH 
Western Australia 6000

Deacons
Level 37, Bankwest Tower
108 St George’s Terrace 
PERTH 
Western Australia 6000

Freehills
Central Plaza 1
345 Queen Street
BRISBANE 
Queensland 4000

Bankers

National Australia Bank Limited
50 St George’s Terrace
PERTH
Western Australia 6000

controlleD entities

Monadelphous Engineering Associates Pty Ltd
Monadelphous Engineering Pty Ltd
Monadelphous Workforce Pty Ltd
Skystar Airport Services Pty Ltd 
Monadelphous Properties Pty Ltd
Genco Pty Ltd 
MBF Workforce Pty Ltd
MI & E Holdings Pty Ltd
Monadelphous PNG Ltd
Skystar Airport Services Holdings Pty Ltd
Skystar Airport Services NZ Pty Ltd
Ellavale Engineering Pty Limited
Moway International Limited
SinoStruct Pty Ltd



Financial Statements | Monadelphous 2008 Annual Report: 44

Company Performance | 2003 - 2008

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2004
$’000

2003
$’000

Revenue 958,966 968,419 534,273 391,727 223,415 244,891

Profit before income tax expense 99,749 86,835 42,196 23,860 12,153 10,130

Income tax expense 30,206 26,417 12,800 7,202 3,625 3,060

Profit after income tax expense 69,543 60,418 29,396 16,658 8,528 7,070

Basic earnings per share 83.21c 73.56c 36.48c 21.15c 11.13c 9.55c

Interim dividends per share (fully franked) 29.00c 22.00c 9.00c 5.25c 2.75c 2.00c

Special dividends per share (fully franked) - 15.00c 9.00c 5.00c -                                                -

Final dividends per share (fully franked) 43.00c 29.00c 15.00c 9.00c 4.75c 4.25c

Net tangible asset backing per share 117.73c 105.87c 73.34c 54.90c 50.25c 45.75c

Total equity and reserves 101,817 90,481 62,134 46,171 39,271 34,100

Depreciation 12,718 10,390 7,510 5,171 4,230 5,236

Return on equity (%) 68.3 66.8 47.3 36.1 21.7 20.7

EBITDA margin (%) 11.5 9.8 9.2 7.4 7.3 6.3

Where necessary comparative figures have been restated to account for the effect of the one-to-four share split that was approved 
by shareholders in the General Meeting on 31 May 2005.  The share split took effect from 1 June 2005.  The restatement has been 
calculated by proportionately adjusting the number of shares on issue at the relevant reporting date in line with the terms of the share 
split.

Note:  The 2005 comparatives have been restated based on Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards. 
 The 2003-2004 comparatives are based on Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.



45: Annual Report Financial Statements | Monadelphous 2008 

Directors’ Report | Year ended 30 June 2008

Your directors submit their report for the year ended 30 June 2008.

Directors
The names and details of the directors of the company in office during the financial year and until the date of this report are as follows.  
Directors were in office for this entire period unless otherwise stated.

names, qualifications, experience and special responsibilities

calogero giovanni Battista rubino Chairman
 Appointed 18 January 1991
 Resigned as Managing Director on 30 May 2003 and continued as Chairman
 42 years experience in the construction and engineering services industry

robert Velletri Managing Director
 Appointed 26 August 1992
 Mechanical Engineer, Corporate Member of the Institution of Engineers Australia
 Appointed as Managing Director on 30 May 2003
 29 years experience in the construction and engineering services industry

irwin tollman Non-Executive Director
 Appointed 26 August 1992
 Chartered Accountant, Member Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia
 17 years experience in the construction and engineering services industry
 Retired as Executive Director on 25 July 2003 and continued as a Non-Executive Director

peter John Dempsey Non-Executive Director
 Appointed 30 May 2003
 Civil Engineer, Fellow of the Institution of Engineers Australia
 35 years experience in the construction industry

christopher percival michelmore Non-Executive Director
 Appointed 1 October 2007
 Civil Engineer, Fellow of the Institution of Engineers Australia
 Member Institution of Structural Engineers, UK
 36 years experience in the construction industry 

company secretaries 

charles roland giles everist Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
 Chartered Accountant, Member Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
 14 years experience in the resources, construction and engineering services industries

philip trueman Company Secretary and Group Financial Controller
  Chartered Accountant, Member Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and the South  
 African Institute of Chartered Accountants
 8 years experience in the construction and engineering services industry

interests in the shares anD options of the company anD relateD BoDies corporate
As at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares and options of Monadelphous Group Limited were:

Ordinary Shares
Options over 

Ordinary Shares

C. G. B. Rubino 3,004,000 Nil

R. Velletri 1,700,000 300,000

I. Tollman 667,586 Nil

P. J. Dempsey 68,000 Nil

C. P. Michelmore 7,664 Nil

earnings per share

Cents

Basic Earnings Per Share 83.21

Diluted Earnings Per Share 81.21
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Directors’ Report (Continued) | Year ended 30 June 2008

DiViDenDs paiD or DeclareD

Cents $’000

Final dividends declared
- on ordinary shares

43.00 36,257

Dividends paid during the year:

Current year interim
- on ordinary shares 

29.00 24,452

Final for 2007
- on ordinary shares 

29.00 24,085

Special for 2007
- on ordinary shares 

15.00 12,458

corporate information

corporate structure

Monadelphous Group Limited is a company limited by shares that is incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Monadelphous Group 
Limited has prepared a consolidated financial report incorporating the entities that it controlled during the financial year (refer note 26 
in the financial report).

The registered office of Monadelphous Group Limited is located at:
1 - 7 Sleat Road 
Applecross, Western Australia, 6153

nature of operations and principal activities

Engineering Construction
Provides large-scale multi-disciplinary project management and construction services, including:
- Fabrication and installation of structural steel, tankage, mechanical and process equipment and piping
- Multi-disciplined construction packages including civil and electrical disciplines
- Plant commissioning
- Demolition and remediation works
- Turnkey design and construct services

Maintenance and Industrial Services
Offering mechanical and electrical engineering services in the following areas:
- Fixed and mobile plant maintenance
- Minor capital works
- Shutdown planning, management and execution
- Specialist concrete and structural maintenance
- Mill reline services
- Labour and equipment hire

Electrical and Instrumentation Services

Provides specialist electrical and instrumentation, installation, communications and construction services to heavy industry across 
Australasia.

Skystar Airport Services

Provides airport ground handling and logistics services.

General

The Monadelphous Group operates from major offices in Perth, Brisbane, Adelaide and Beijing with a network of regional offices and 
workshop facilities in Kalgoorlie, Darwin, Roxby Downs, Gladstone, Hunter Valley, Mt Isa, Mackay and Townsville.

The consolidated entity’s revenue is earned predominantly from the resources, energy and infrastructure industry sector.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of those activities during the year.

Employees

The consolidated entity employed 3,848 employees as of 30 June 2008 (2007: 4,034 employees). Please note the consolidated 
employee numbers in 2007 include 243 Skystar employees that were subsequently transitioned out of the consolidated entity 
following the partial divestment of Skystar’s international turnaround business on 4 January 2008.
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operating anD financial reVieW

Review 
A review of operations of the consolidated entity during the financial year, the results of those operations, the changes in the 
state of affairs and the likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity are set out in the Chairman’s Report.  

operating results for the year
Operating results for the year were:
 

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

Revenue from services 953,991 963,717

Profit after income tax 69,543 60,418

significant changes in the state of affairs

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the chief entity or the consolidated entity during the financial year.

On 28 November 2007, Monadelphous Group Limited obtained 100% ownership of Moway International Limited, a dormant company 
incorporated in Hong Kong.  In addition, SinoStruct Pty Ltd was incorporated in Australia on 20 December 2007 and is a 100% 
owned subsidiary of Monadelphous Group Limited.

On 4 January 2008, Monadelphous Group Limited divested part of the operations of its wholly owned subsidiary Skystar Airport 
Services Pty Ltd to Toll Dnata Airport Services Pty Ltd. The assets consisted of the operations in Brisbane and Perth Airport and 
included ground handling contracts with international carriers Singapore Airlines, Emirates and Royal Brunei. The sale resulted in a 
one off pre-tax profit of approximately $4.9 million. The balance of the operations of Skystar Airport Services will continue to operate 
profitably with the focus of the business now on growing its revenues with Australian carriers.  

significant eVents after the Balance Date

There are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated 
entity in subsequent financial years.

On 18 August 2008, the directors of Monadelphous Group Limited declared a final dividend on ordinary shares in respect of the 2008 
financial year. The total amount of the dividend is $36,256,539 which represents a fully franked final dividend of 43 cents per share. 
This dividend has not been provided for in the 30 June 2008 Financial Statements. 

likely DeVelopments anD eXpecteD results

Other than as referred to in this report, further information as to likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity 
would, in the opinion of the directors, be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity.  

enVironmental regulation anD performance

Monadelphous Group Limited is subject to a range of environmental regulations.

During the financial year Monadelphous Group Limited met all reporting requirements under any relevant legislation. There were no 
incidents which required reporting.

The company aims to continually improve its environmental performance.
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share options

unissued shares

As at the date of this report, there were 2,570,000 unissued ordinary shares under options as follows:

-  2,110,000 options to take up one ordinary share in Monadelphous Group Limited at an issue price of $1.95.   
The options expire on 31 January 2009.

-  270,000 options to take up one ordinary share in Monadelphous Group Limited at an issue price of $4.71.  
The options expire between 31 January 2009 and 31 January 2010.

-  190,000 options to take up one ordinary share in Monadelphous Group Limited at an issue price of $9.06.  
The options expire between 31 January 2009 and 31 January 2011.

Option holders do not have any right, by virtue of the option, to participate in any share issue of the company or any related body 
corporate or in the interest issue of any other registered scheme.

shares issued as a result of the exercise of options

During the financial year, employees and directors have exercised the option to acquire 1,265,000 fully paid ordinary shares at a 
weighted average exercise price of $2.10. No options have been exercised since the end of the financial year.

inDemnification anD insurance of Directors anD officers

During or since the end of the financial year, the company has paid premiums in respect of a contract insuring all the directors of 
Monadelphous Group Limited against a liability incurred in their role as directors of the company, except where:

(a) the liability arises out of conduct involving a wilful breach of duty; or

(b) there has been a contravention of Sections 182 or 183 of the Corporations Act 2001.

The total amount of insurance contract premiums paid was $73,718 (2007: $53,644). 

interests in contracts or proposeD contracts With the company

During or since the end of the financial year, no director has had any interest in a contract or proposed contract with the company 
being an interest the nature of which has been declared by the director in accordance with Section 300(11)(d) of the Corporations  
Act 2001.  
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remuneration report (auDiteD)

This Remuneration Report outlines the director and executive remuneration arrangements of the Company and the Group in 
accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and its Regulations. For the purposes of this report Key 
Management Personnel (KMP) of the Group are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the major activities of the Company and the Group, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or 
otherwise) of the parent company, and includes the five executives in the Parent and the Group receiving the highest remuneration. 

For the purposes of this report, the term ‘executive’ encompasses the Managing Director and senior General Managers of the Parent 
and the Group.

Details of Key Management Personnel (including the five highest paid executives of the Company and the Group)

(i) Directors

C. G. B. Rubino Chairman
R. Velletri Managing Director
I. Tollman Director (Non-Executive)
P. J. Dempsey Director (Non-Executive)
C. P. Michelmore Director (Non-Executive) – appointed 1 October 2007

(ii)  Executives

D. Foti Executive General Manager, Engineering Construction
A. Erdash General Manager, Maintenance & Industrial Services Western Region
G. Everist Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
M. Jansen General Manager, Maintenance & Industrial Services Eastern Region
S. Murray General Manager, MIE

Remuneration Philosophy

The performance of the company depends upon the quality of its directors and executives. To prosper, the company must attract, 
motivate and retain highly skilled directors and executives.

To this end, the company embodies the principles of providing competitive rewards to attract high calibre executives, and the linking 
of executive rewards to shareholder value, in its remuneration framework.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the company is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation 
arrangements for the directors and the executive management team.

The Remuneration Committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of remuneration of directors and the executive 
management team on a periodic basis. This assessment is made with reference to relevant employment market conditions, with the 
overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board and executive team.

In determining the levels of remuneration of directors and executives, the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration  
the performance of the Group and the individual.

Remuneration Structure

In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive management 
remuneration is separate and distinct.

non-executive director remuneration

Objective

The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at a level which provides the company with the ability to attract and retain directors 
of the highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost which is acceptable to shareholders.

Structure

The Constitution and the ASX Listing Rules specify that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors shall be determined 
from time to time by a general meeting. An amount not exceeding the amount determined is then divided between the directors as 
agreed. The most recent determination was at the Annual General Meeting held on 27 November 2007 when shareholders approved 
an aggregate remuneration of $400,000 in the ‘not to exceed sum’ paid to non-executive directors.

The amount of aggregate remuneration sought to be approved by shareholders and the manner in which it is apportioned amongst 
directors is reviewed annually. The Board considers the fees paid to non-executive directors of comparable companies when 
undertaking the annual review process.

Non-executive directors have long been encouraged by the Board to hold shares in the company (purchased by the director 
on-market). It is considered good governance for directors to have a stake in the company. 

The non-executive directors do not receive retirement benefits, nor do they participate in any incentive programs. 

The remuneration of non-executive directors for the period ending 30 June 2008 is detailed in Table 1 on page 51 of this report.
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executive remuneration

Objective

The company aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration commensurate with their position and responsibilities 
within the company so as to:

- Reward executives for Group, business unit and individual performance;

- Align the interests of executives with those of shareholders; and

- Ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards.

Structure

In determining the level and make-up of executive remuneration, the Remuneration Committee considers market levels of 
remuneration for comparable executive roles when making its recommendations to the Board. 

Remuneration consists of a fixed remuneration element and variable remuneration elements in the form of Short Term and Long  
Term Incentives.

The proportion of fixed remuneration and variable remuneration is established for each member of the executive management team 
by the Remuneration Committee. Tables 1 and 2 on pages 51 and 52 of this report detail the proportion of fixed and variable 
remuneration for each of the executive directors and the members of the executive management team of the company.

Fixed remuneration

Objective

The level of fixed remuneration is set so as to provide a base level of remuneration which is both appropriate to the position and 
competitive in the market.

Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and the process consists of company-wide, business unit 
and individual performance, relevant comparative remuneration in the market and internally, and where appropriate, external advice 
on policies and practices.

Structure

Executive team members are given the opportunity to receive their fixed remuneration in a variety of forms including cash and  
fringe benefits. It is intended that the manner of payment chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost  
for the company.

The fixed remuneration component of the executive directors and the 5 most highly remunerated members of the executive 
management team of the company is detailed in Tables 1 and 2 on pages 51 and 52 of this report.

Variable Remuneration – Short Term Incentive (STI)

Objective

The objective of the STI program is to link the achievement of the company’s operational targets with the remuneration received by 
the executives charged with meeting those targets. The total STI is set at a level so as to remunerate the executives for achieving the 
operational targets and such that the cost to the company is reasonable in the circumstances.

Structure

On an annual basis, after consideration of performance against KPIs, an overall performance rating for the company and each 
individual business unit is approved by the Remuneration Committee. The individual performance of each executive is also rated and 
all three are taken into account when determining the amount, if any, of the short-term incentive payment made to each executive.

The aggregate of annual STI payments available for executives across the company is subject to the approval of the Remuneration 
Committee. Payments made are usually delivered as a cash bonus.

Variable Remuneration – Long Term Incentive (LTI)

Objective

The objective of the LTI plan is to retain and reward the members of the executive management team in a manner which aligns this 
element of remuneration with the creation of shareholder wealth.

Structure

LTI grants to executives are delivered at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee in the form of options. During the year ended 
30 June 2008, there were no options granted as part of director and executive remuneration. All executives are eligible to participate 
in the Monadelphous Group Limited Employee Option Plan.
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Variable Remuneration – Long Term Incentive (LTI) (continued)

In accordance with the rules of the Monadelphous Group Limited Employee Option Plan, options may only be exercised in specified 
window periods (or at the discretion of the directors in specified circumstances):

 25% 2 years after the options were issued

 25% 3 years after the options were issued

 50% 4 years after the options were issued

Employment Contracts

All executives have non-fixed term employment contracts. The company or executive may terminate the employment contract by providing 
4 weeks written notice. The company may terminate the contract at any time without notice if serious misconduct has occurred. 

company performance

The profit after tax for the Group for the last six years is as follows:

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2006
$’000

2005
$’000

2004
$’000

2003
$’000

Profit after income tax expense 69,543 60,418 29,396 16,658 8,528 7,070

A review of the company’s performance over the last six years has been provided on page 44 of this report.

remuneration of key management personnel

Table 1:  Remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2008

Short Term Benefits Post Employment
Share-
based  

Payments Other Total

Total  
Performance 

Related  
% 

Total 
Options 
Related  

%Salary  
& Fees

Non  
Monetary

Cash STI
Super-

annuation
Retirement 

Benefits
Options

LTI

Non-Executive Directors

I. Tollman 30,000 334 - - - - - 30,334 - -

P. J. Dempsey 70,000 779 - - - - - 70,779 - -

C. P. Michelmore * 35,000 390 - - - - - 35,390 - -

Subtotal Non-
Executive Directors 135,000 1,503 - - - - - 136,503 - -

Executive Directors

C. G. B. Rubino 300,976 7,881 - - - - - 308,857 - -

R. Velletri 536,468 16,322 200,000 13,130 - 29,670 - 795,590 28.87% 3.73%

Subtotal  
Executive Directors 837,444 24,203 200,000 13,130 - 29,670 - 1,104,447 20.80% 2.69%

Other Key Management Personnel

D. Foti 417,941 12,334 125,000 13,130 - 15,824 - 584,229 24.10% 2.71%

A. Erdash 329,230 9,223 60,000 13,130 - 9,890 - 421,473 16.58% 2.35%

G. Everist 322,663 9,027 60,000 13,130 - 11,039 - 415,859 17.08% 2.65%

M. Jansen 313,059 8,879 60,000 13,130 - 9,890 10,907 415,865 16.81% 2.38%

S. Murray 218,641 6,251 30,000 13,130 - 37,131 - 305,153 22.00% 12.17%

Subtotal Other Key 
Management Personnel 1,601,534 45,714 335,000 65,650 - 83,774 10,907 2,142,579 19.55% 3.91%

Total 2,573,978 71,420 535,000 78,780 - 113,444 10,907 3,383,529 19.16% 3.35%
 
* Appointed 1 October 2007
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remuneration of key management personnel (continued)

Table 2:  Remuneration for the year ended 30 June 2007

Short Term Benefits Post Employment
Share-
based  

Payments Other Total

Total  
Performance 

Related 
% 

Total 
Options 
Related 

%Salary  
& Fees

Non  
Monetary

Cash STI
Super-

annuation
Retirement 

Benefits
Options

LTI

Non-Executive Directors

I. Tollman 30,000 386 - - - - - 30,386 - -

P. J. Dempsey 50,000 643 - - - - - 50,643 - -

Subtotal Non-
Executive Directors 80,000 1,029 - - - - - 81,029 - -

Executive Directors

C. G. B. Rubino 202,200 7,131 - - - - - 209,331 - -

R. Velletri 421,070 11,294 100,000 12,687 - 48,475 - 593,526 25.02% 8.17%

Subtotal Executive 
Directors 623,270 18,425 100,000 12,687 - 48,475 - 802,857 18.49% 6.04%

Other Key Management Personnel

D. Foti 329,242 8,825 80,000 12,666 - 25,853 - 456,586 23.18% 5.66%

A. Erdash 278,938 7,412 35,000 12,666 - 18,158 - 352,174 15.09% 5.16%

D. Mutch 248,895 6,571 25,000 12,687 - 16,158 - 309,311 13.31% 5.22%

M. Jansen 263,870 6,940 35,000 12,666 - 16,158 6,590 341,224 14.99% 4.74%

G. Everist 262,748 6,965 35,000 12,687 - 19,228 - 336,628 16.11% 5.71%

Subtotal Other Key 
Management Personnel 1,383,693 36,713 210,000 63,372 - 95,555 6,590 1,795,923 17.01% 5.32%

Total 2,086,963 56,167 310,000 76,059 - 144,030 6,590 2,679,809 16.94% 5.37%

 
Compensation options: Granted and vested during the year

During the financial year ended 30 June 2008, no options were granted as equity compensation benefits to key management 
personnel, nor were any options granted during the financial year ended 30 June 2007.

All options that vested during the year were exercised and are disclosed in Table 3 of this report.
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remuneration of key management personnel (continued)

Table 3:  Shares issued on exercise of compensation options

30 June 2008

Options vested and  
options exercised  

Number
Shares issued  

Number
Paid  

$ per share

Directors

R. Velletri 150,000 150,000 $1.95

Executives

D. Foti 80,000 80,000 $1.95

A. Erdash 50,000 50,000 $1.95

M. Jansen 50,000 50,000 $1.95

G. Everist 150,000 150,000 $1.41

Total 480,000 480,000

On 31 January 2008, the date of exercise of the above options, the closing share price was $11.42.

30 June 2007

Options vested and  
options exercised  

Number
Shares issued 

 Number
Paid  

$ per share

Directors

R. Velletri 150,000 150,000 $1.95

Executives

D. Foti 80,000 80,000 $1.95

A. Erdash 150,000 150,000 $1.12

M. Jansen 50,000 50,000 $1.95

G. Everist 100,000 100,000 $1.54

D. Mutch 50,000 50,000 $1.95

Total 580,000 580,000
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Directors’ meetings

The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the year and the number of meetings 
attended by each director was as follows:

Directors’  
Meetings

Meetings of Committees

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Number of meetings held: 12 2 2 2

Number of meetings attended:

C. G. B. Rubino 12 2 2 2

R. Velletri 12 - 1 1

I. Tollman 12 2 2 -

P. J. Dempsey 12 2 - 2

C. P. Michelmore * 8 - 1 1

* Attended all directors’ and committee meetings from the date of appointment

committee memBership

As at the date of this report, the company had an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Board reviewed the committee membership and implemented changes to the Audit, Remuneration and 
Nomination Committees in order to achieve best corporate governance practices. 

Members acting on the committees of the Board during the year were:

Audit Remuneration Nomination

P. J. Dempsey (c)
C. P. Michelmore (c)  
(appointed 26 June 2008)

C. G. B. Rubino (c)

C. G. B. Rubino (resigned 26 June 2008) C. G. B. Rubino C. P. Michelmore (appointed 26 June 2008)

I.Tollman I. Tollman P. J. Dempsey

C. P. Michelmore (appointed 26 June 2008) R. Velletri (resigned 26 June 2008) R. Velletri (resigned 26 June 2008) 

Note: (c) Designates the chairman of the committee.

rounDing

The amounts contained in this report and in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000) (where 
rounding is applicable) under the option available to the company under ASIC Class Order 98/0100.  The company is an entity to 
which the Class Order applies.

corporate goVernance

In recognising the need for the highest standards of corporate behaviour and accountability, the directors of Monadelphous Group 
Limited support and have adhered to the principles of Corporate Governance.

The company’s Corporate Governance Statement is detailed on page 106 of this report.
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The directors received the following declaration from the auditor of Monadelphous Group Limited.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Monadelphous Group Limited 

In relation to our audit of the financial report of Monadelphous Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008, to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of 
professional conduct.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

non-auDit serVices

The following non-audit services were provided by the entity’s auditor, Ernst & Young. The directors are satisfied that the provision of 
non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act. The 
nature and scope of each type of non-audit service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.

Ernst & Young received or are due to receive $478,711 for the provision of non-audit services.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Directors’ Report (Continued) | Year ended 30 June 2008

Ernst & Young

C B Pavlovich
Partner
Perth
18 August 2008

C. G. B. Rubino
Chairman
Perth, 18 August 2008
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InDePenDent AuDItor’S rePort to the MeMberS of MonADeLPhouS GrouP LIMIteD 

report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Monadelphous Group Limited, which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2008, 
and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant 
accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it 
controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year. 

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with the Australian 
Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001.   
This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 2(a), the directors also state that the financial report, 
comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board. 

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report.  
The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report  in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.  We have given to the directors of the 
company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration.  In addition to our audit of the financial report, we were engaged to undertake the 
services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  The provision of these services has not impaired our independence.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion: 

1. the financial report of Monadelphous Group Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

  i   giving a true and fair view of the financial position of Monadelphous Group Limited and the consolidated entity at 30 June 2008 and of  
 their performance for the year ended on that date; and

  ii   complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations  
 Regulations 2001.

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting  
 Standards Board.

report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 49 to 53 of the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2008.  
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A 
of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Monadelphous Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2008, complies with section 300A of the 
Corporations Act 2001. 

Ernst & Young

C B Pavlovich
Partner
Perth 18 August 2008

Independent Audit Report (Continued) | Year ended 30 June 2008
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In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Monadelphous Group Limited, I state that:

1)  In the opinion of the directors:

 (a)  the financial statements, notes and the additional disclosures included in the Directors’ Report designated as audited, of the 
company and of the consolidated entity are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

  (i)  giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2008 and of their 
performance for the year ended on that date; and

  (ii) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

 (b)  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and 
payable.

2)   This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the directors in accordance with section 
295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the year ended 30 June 2008.

3)  In the opinion of the directors, as at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the 
Closed Group identified in note 26 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to, 
by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee.

On behalf of the Board

C. G. B. Rubino
Chairman
Perth, 18 August 2008
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Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

Continuing Operations

REVENUE 3(a) 958,966 968,419 60,847 58,819

Cost of services rendered (837,391) (858,718) - -

GROSS PROFIT 121,575 109,701 60,847 58,819

Other income 3(b) 7,418 1,576 - 449

Business development and tender expenses (8,235) (5,443) - -

Occupancy expenses (807) (867) - -

Administrative expenses (19,913) (17,865) (535) (238)

Finance costs 3(c) (1,878) (1,526) - -

Share of net profits of joint ventures accounted 
for using the equity method 11 1,589 1,259 - -

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 99,749 86,835 60,312 59,030

Income tax expense 4 (30,206) (26,417) (1,054) (1,623)

PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX 69,543 60,418 59,258 57,407

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO MEMBERS OF 
MONADELPHOUS GROUP LIMITED 17(a) 69,543 60,418 59,258 57,407

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 22 83.21 73.56

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 22 81.21 71.13

Dividends per share (cents per share) 5 72.00 66.00
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Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 18(b) 126,447 101,364 118,395 93,578

Trade and other receivables 6 204,867 95,972 163 114

Inventories 7 6,571 13,075 - -

Total current assets 337,885 210,411 118,558 93,692

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables 6 - - 319,362 279,681

Investments in subsidiaries 8 - - 33,729 33,284

Property, plant and equipment 9 61,924 62,240 - -

Deferred tax assets 4 9,396 11,380 194 1

Goodwill 10 2,551 2,551 - -

Investments accounted for using the equity method 11 176 107 - -

Total non-current assets 74,047 76,278 353,285 312,966

TOTAL ASSETS 411,932 286,689 471,843 406,658

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 12 240,441 115,892 381,195 313,838

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 13 11,758 10,557 - -

Income tax payable 11,590 14,970 10,908 14,793

Provisions 14 30,436 35,776 - -

Derivative financial instruments 15 345 - 345 -

Total current liabilities 294,570 177,195 392,448 328,631

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 13 13,124 16,929 - -

Provisions 14 2,265 2,034 - -

Deferred tax liabilities 4 156 50 - -

Total non-current liabilities 15,545 19,013 - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 310,115 196,208 392,448 328,631

NET ASSETS 101,817 90,481 79,395 78,027

EQUITY

Contributed equity 16 28,678 26,017 28,678 26,017

Reserves 17 1,448 1,321 1,759 1,315

Retained earnings 17 71,691 63,143 48,958 50,695

TOTAL EQUITY 101,817 90,481 79,395 78,027
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Statement Of Changes In Equity |  For The Year Ended 30 June 2008

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

Issued Capital Reserves
Retained  
Earnings

Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

CONSOLIDATED

At 1 July 2007 26,017 1,321 63,143 90,481

Currency translation differences - (317) - (317)

Total income/(expense) for the period   
recognised directly in equity

- (317) - (317)

Profit for the period - - 69,543 69,543

Total income/(expense) for the period - (317) 69,543 69,226

Share-based payments - 444 - 444

Issue of share capital 2,661 - - 2,661

Equity dividends - - (60,995) (60,995)

At 30 June 2008 28,678 1,448 71,691 101,817

At 1 July 2006 21,063 1,728 39,343 62,134

Currency translation differences - 192 - 192

Total income/(expense) for the period 
recognised directly in equity

- 192 - 192

Profit for the period - - 60,418 60,418

Total income/(expense) for the period - 192 60,418 60,610

Share-based payments - 571 - 571

Issue of share capital 4,954 - - 4,954

Equity dividends - - (37,788) (37,788)

Transferred from asset revaluation reserve - (492) 492 -

Transferred from capital profits reserve - (678) 678 -

At 30 June 2007 26,017 1,321 63,143 90,481

PARENT

At 1 July 2007 26,017 1,315 50,695 78,027

Profit for the period - - 59,258 59,258

Total income/(expense) for the period - - 59,258 59,258

Share-based payments - 444 - 444

Issue of share capital 2,661 - - 2,661

Equity dividends - - (60,995) (60,995)

At 30 June 2008 28,678 1,759 48,958 79,395

At 1 July 2006 21,063 4,651 27,169 52,883

Profit for the period - - 57,407 57,407

Total income/(expense) for the period - - 57,407 57,407

Share-based payments - 571 - 571

Issue of share capital 4,954 - - 4,954

Equity dividends - - (37,788) (37,788)

Transferred from asset revaluation reserve - (3,907) 3,907 -

At 30 June 2007 26,017 1,315 50,695 78,027
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Cash Flow Statement  |  Year Ended 30 June 2008

Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST) 1,049,169 1,025,855 - -

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST) (928,530) (907,391) - -

Interest received 4,872 4,589 4,744 4,494

Borrowing costs (1,878) (1,526) - -

Other income 316 772 - 449

Income tax paid (31,480) (25,991) (31,225) (25,592)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18(a) 92,469 96,308 (26,481) (20,649)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 11,423 1,067 - -

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (8,141) (9,196) - -

Acquisition of subsidiary - (2,843) - (6,766)

Cost incurred on acquisition of subsidiary - (78) - (78)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN)  
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 3,282 (11,050) - (6,844)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Advances from controlled entities - - 109,632 100,074

Dividend paid (60,995) (37,788) (60,995) (37,788)

Proceeds from issue of shares 2,661 2,204 2,661 2,204

Proceeds from/(repayment) of borrowings 557 360 - -

Payment of finance leases (12,134) (9,932) - -

NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN)  
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (69,911) (45,156) 51,298 64,490

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25,840 40,102 24,817 36,997

Net foreign exchange differences (757) (388) - -

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 101,364 61,650 93,578 56,581

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  
AT END OF PERIOD 18(b) 126,447 101,364 118,395 93,578
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements  | 30 June 2008

1. corporate information

   The financial report of Monadelphous Group Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2008 was authorised for issue in 
accordance with a resolution of directors on 18 August 2008. 

  Monadelphous Group Limited is a company limited by shares incorporated in Australia whose shares are traded on the Australian 
Stock Exchange.

  The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the Directors’ Report.

2. summary of significant accounting policies

 Basis of preparation

   The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board. The financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial 
instruments which have been measured at fair value. 

   The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000) unless 
otherwise stated under the option available to the Company under ASIC Class Order 98/100.  The Company is an entity to which 
the Class Order applies. 

a) Compliance with IFRS

   The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

b) New accounting standards and interpretations

   Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective have 
not been adopted by the Group for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2008. These standards will have no material 
impact on the Group’s financial statements. These are outlined below: 

Reference Title

Application  
date of  

standard

Application 
date for  
Group

Impact on the Group  
financial report

AASB Int. 12 and 
AASB 2007-2 

Service Concession 
Arrangements and 
consequential amendments 
to other Australian 
Accounting Standards

1 January 2008 1 July 2008 No material impact on the 
Group’s financial statements. 

AASB Int. 4 (Revised) Determining whether an 
Arrangement contains a Lease

1 January 2008 1 July 2008 No material impact on the 
Group’s financial statements.

AASB Int. 129 Service Concession 
Arrangements: Disclosures

1 January 2008 1 July 2008 No material impact on the 
Group’s financial statements.
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

b) New accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

Reference Title

Application 
date of  

standard

Application 
date for 
Group

Impact on the Group 
 financial report

AASB 8 and 
AASB 2007-3

Operating Segments and 
consequential amendments 
to other Australian 
Accounting Standards

1 January 2009 1 July 2009 AASB 8 is a disclosure standard 
so will have no direct impact on the 
amounts included in the Group’s 
financial statements. However, the 
amendments may impact on the 
Group’s segment disclosures.

AASB 123 (Revised) 
and AASB 2007-6

Borrowing Costs and 
consequential amendments 
to other Australian 
Accounting Standards

1 January 2009 1 July 2009 No material impact on the 
Group’s financial statements.

AASB 101 (Revised) 
and AASB 2007-8

Presentation of  
Financial Statements and 
consequential amendments 
to other Australian 
Accounting Standards

1 January 2009 1 July 2009 These amendments are only 
expected to affect the presentation 
of the Group’s financial report and 
will not have a direct impact on 
the measurement and recognition 
of amounts disclosed in the 
financial report. The Group has not 
determined at this stage whether 
to present a single statement of 
comprehensive income or two 
separate income statements. 

AASB 2008-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standard  
– Share-based Payments: 
Vesting Conditions 
and Cancellations 

1 January 2009 1 July 2009 The Group has share-based payment 
arrangements that may be affected 
by these amendments. However 
the Group has not yet determined 
the extent of the impact, if any.

AASB 3 (Revised) Business Combinations 1 July 2009 1 July 2009 The impact will be on any 
future acquisitions.

AASB 127 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements

1 July 2009 1 July 2009 If the Group changes its ownership 
interest in existing subsidiaries in the 
future, the change will be accounted 
for as an equity transaction. This 
will have no impact on goodwill, 
nor will it give rise to a gain or loss 
in the Group’s income statement.

AASB 2008-3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 3 and AASB 127 

1 July 2009 1 July 2009 Refer to AASB 3 (Revised) and 
AASB 127 (Revised) above.
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

b) New accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

Reference Title

Application 
date of  

standard

Application 
date for 
Group

Impact on the Group 
 financial report

Amendments to 
International Financial 
Reporting  Standards

Cost of an Investment in a 
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled 
Entity or Associate 

1 January 2009 1 July 2009 Recognising all dividends received 
from subsidiaries as income will likely 
give rise to a greater income being 
recognised by the parent entity after 
adoption of these amendments. In 
addition, if the Group enters into 
any reorganisation establishing 
new parent entities, an assessment 
will need to be made to determine 
if the reorganisation meets the 
conditions imposed to be effectively 
accounted for on a ‘carry-over 
basis’ rather than at fair value.

Amendments to 
International Financial 
Reporting Standards

Improvements to IFRSs 1 January 2009 
except for 
amendments 
to IFRS 5, 
which are 
effective from 
1 July 2009.

1 July 2009 The Group has not yet determined 
the extent of the impact of 
the amendments, if any.

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment 
in a Foreign Operation

1 January 2009 1 July 2009 The Interpretation is unlikely to have 
any impact on the Group since 
it does not significantly restrict 
the hedged risk or where the 
hedging instrument can be held.

 Adoption of new accounting standard

  The Group has adopted AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and all consequential amendments which became applicable 
for reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2007. The adoption of this standard has only affected the disclosure in 
these financial statements. There has been no affect on profit and loss or the financial position of the entity. 

c) Basis of consolidation

  The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Monadelphous Group Limited and its subsidiaries  
as at 30 June each year (‘the Group’).

  The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using consistent 
accounting policies.

  In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions, income and expenses and profit 
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full.

  Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from 
the date on which control is transferred out of the Group.

  The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase method of accounting 
involves allocating the cost of the business combination to the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities and contingent 
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

 d) Business combinations

  The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations regardless of whether equity instruments or 
other assets are acquired. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given, shares issued or liabilities incurred or assumed 
at the date of exchange plus costs directly attributable to the combination. Where equity instruments are issued in a business 
combination, the fair value of the instruments is their published market price as at the date of exchange. Transaction costs arising 
on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity.

  Except for non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale (which are measured at fair value less costs to sell),  
all identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at 
their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the business combination over the net fair value of the Group’s 
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the Group’s share of 
the net fair value of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary, the difference is recognised as a gain in the income statement, but 
only after a reassessment of the identification and measurement of the net assets acquired.

  Where settlement of any part of the consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present 
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which  
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

e) Foreign currency translation

 Functional and presentation currency

  Both the functional and presentation currencies of Monadelphous Group Limited, its Australian subsidiaries and its Papua New 
Guinea subsidiary (Monadelphous PNG Ltd) are Australian dollars (A$). Each entity in the Group determines its own functional 
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. 

  The functional currency of the New Zealand subsidiary (Skystar Airport Services NZ Pty Ltd) is New Zealand dollars (NZ$)  
and the Hong Kong subsidiary (Moway International Limited) is United States dollars (US$).

 Transaction and balances

  Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date 
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at 
the balance sheet date. 

  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate  
as at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using  
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. 

 Translation of functional currency to presentation currency

  As at the reporting date the assets and liabilities of the New Zealand and Hong Kong subsidiaries are translated into the 
presentation currency of Monadelphous Group Limited at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and its  
income statement is translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the period. 

 Exchange variations arising from the translation are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. 

f) Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and short term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value. 

  For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, 
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are included within interest-bearing loans and borrowings in current liabilities 
on the balance sheet. 

g) Trade and other receivables

  Trade receivables, which generally have 30 day terms, are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for 
any uncollectible amounts. An allowance for impairment loss is made when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be 
able to collect the debts.  Bad debts are written off when identified.

  Collectibility of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis at a company and business unit level. Individual debts that are 
known to be uncollectible are written off when identified. An impairment provision is recognised where there is objective evidence 
that the Group will not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments or debts more than 
60 days overdue are considered objective evidence of impairment. The amount of the impairment loss is the receivable carrying 
amount compared to the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

h) Inventories

  Construction work-in-progress is stated at the aggregate of contract costs incurred to date plus profits recognised to date less 
recognised losses and progress billings.  Costs include all costs directly related to specific contracts.

i)  Derivative financial instruments

  The Group uses derivative financial instruments (including forward currency contracts) to manage its risks associated with foreign 
currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative 
contract is entered and are subsequently remeasured to fair value. These derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting and 
changes in fair value are recognised immediately in the profit or loss. 

  Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Any gains  
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the profit or loss for the year.  

  The fair values of forward currency contracts are calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts  
with similar maturity profiles.

j) Investments and other financial assets

  Investments and financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are categorised 
as either financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or  
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. 
Designation is re-evaluated at each financial year end, but there are restrictions on reclassifying to other categories. 

  When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of assets not at fair value through 
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

  Recognition and derecognition

  All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Group commits  
to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts that require 
delivery of the assets within the period established generally by regulation or convention in the market place. Financial assets  
are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets has expired or been transferred. 

 (i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’. 
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term with the intention 
of making a profit. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 
Gains or losses on financial assets held for trading are recognised in profit or loss and the related assets are classified as current 
assets in the balance sheet. 

 (ii) Loans and receivables

  Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit 
or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired. These are included in current assets, except for those with 
maturities greater than 12 months after balance date, which are classified as non-current. 
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

k) Property, plant and equipment

  All classes of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts that are eligible for capitalisation when the cost of replacing the 
parts is incurred. Similarly, when each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant 
and equipment as a replacement only if it is eligible for capitalisation. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in the 
profit or loss as incurred. 

  Depreciation is calculated on a diminishing balance method on all plant and equipment acquired before 1 July 1996 and straight 
line basis for all acquisitions on or after 1 July 1996, and a straight line basis on all property other than freehold land.

 Major depreciation periods are:

 

   
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial 
year end. 

 Derecognition

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no further future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. 

l) Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

  At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an indicator  
of impairment exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes a formal estimate of 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets or groups of assets and the asset’s value in use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value. In such cases the 
asset is tested for impairment as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset  
or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount the asset or cash-generating unit is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount.

  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value. 

  An assessment is also made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment 
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised 
in the income statement. After such a reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised 
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

2008 2007

Buildings 40 years 40 years

Plant and equipment 3 to 15 years 3 to 15 years
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

m) Leases

  The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires 
an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. 

  Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement 
so as to reflect the risks and benefits incidental to ownership.

 Finance leases

  Leases which effectively transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are 
classified as finance leases. The financed asset is stated at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  An interest bearing liability of equal 
value is also recognised at inception. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction  
of the lease liability. 

  The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest  
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

 Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

 Operating leases

  Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating 
leases.  The minimum lease payments of operating leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the  
lease term.

n) Joint ventures

  Interest in joint venture entities are carried at the lower of the equity-accounted amount and recoverable amount in the 
consolidated financial report. Under the equity method, the Group’s share of the results of the joint venture entity is recognised  
in the income statement, and the share of movements in reserves is recognised in the balance sheet. The joint venture entities’ 
accounting policies conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. 

o) Goodwill

  Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business 
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. 

  Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 

  Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
value may be impaired. 

  For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to 
each of the Group’s cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of 
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. 

  Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units), to 
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than 
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

  The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit is determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow 
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five year period. Cash flows beyond the  
five year period are not used in the calculation. 

  When goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and an operation within that unit is disposed 
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining 
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this manner is measured based on the relative values of the 
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

 Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not subsequently reversed.

p) Trade and other payables

  Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and are not discounted due to their short term nature. They represent 
liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the 
Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are 
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 to 45 days of recognition. 

  Monadelphous Group Limited and the controlled entities subject to Class Order 98/1418 (refer to Note 26 for further details), 
entered into a deed of indemnity on 12 April 1995, 3 July 2001, 30 June 2005 and 29 June 2007.  The effect of the deed is that 
Monadelphous Group Limited has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding up of these controlled entities.   
The controlled entities have also given a similar guarantee in the event that Monadelphous Group Limited is wound up.
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

q) Interest bearing loans and borrowings

  Interest bearing loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable 
transaction costs. 

  After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

  Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability  
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. 

 Gains or losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised. 

  Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred. The Group does not currently hold qualifying assets but,  
if it did, the borrowing costs directly associated with the asset would be capitalised (including any other associated costs  
directly attributable to the borrowing and temporary investment income earned on the borrowing). 

r) Provisions 

  Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

   When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the 
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to 
any provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. 

  Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure to settle the present obligation  
at the balance sheet date using a discounted cash flow methodology. The risks specific to the provision are factored into the cash 
flows and as such a risk-free government bond rate relevant to the expected life of the provision is used as a discount rate. If the 
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost. 

  A provision for dividends is not recognised as a liability unless the dividends are declared on or before the reporting date.

s) Employee benefits

 (i)  Wages, salaries, annual leave, rostered days off and sick leave

  Liabilities for wages and salaries, annual leave, rostered days off and accumulating sick leave expected to be settled within twelve 
months of the reporting date are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date. They are measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Expenses for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the 
leave is taken and are measured at the rates paid or payable. 

 (ii) Long service leave

  The liability for long service leave is recognised and measured as the present value of the expected future payments to be made 
in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 
levels and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national 
government bonds, which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.

 (iii) Defined contribution superannuation plans

 Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.

 (iv) Workers compensation

  It is customary for all entities within the Construction and Engineering industry to be covered by workers’ compensation 
insurance. Payments under these policies are calculated differently depending on which state of Australia the entity is operating 
in.  Premiums are generally calculated based on actual wages paid and claims experience.  Wages are estimated at the 
beginning of each reporting period.  Final payments are made when each policy is closed out based on the difference between 
actual wages and the original estimated amount.  The amount of each payment varies depending on the number of incidents 
recorded during each period and the severity thereof.  The policies are closed out after a five year period through negotiation with 
the relevant insurance company.  The provision has been created to cover the expected costs associated with closing out each 
insurance policy and is adjusted accordingly based on the actual payroll incurred and the severity of incidents that have occurred 
during each period.
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

t) Share-based payment transactions

  The Group provides benefits to employees (including Key Management Personnel) of the Group in the form of share-based 
payments, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (equity-settled transactions).

  Monadelphous Group Limited provides benefits to employees through the Monadelphous Group Limited Employee Option Plan. 

  The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees (for awards granted after 7 November 2002 that were unvested at  
1 January 2005) is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date which they are granted. The fair 
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken  
of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of Monadelphous Group Limited  
(market conditions), if applicable.

  The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which 
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled (the vesting period), ending on the date on which the relevant employees 
become fully entitled to the award (the vesting date).

  The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until vesting date reflects (i) the extent 
to which the vesting period has expired and (ii) the number of awards that, in the opinion of the directors of the Group, will 
ultimately vest. This opinion is formed based on the best available information at balance date. No adjustment is made for the 
likelihood of market performance conditions being met as the effect of these conditions is included in the determination of fair 
value at grant date.  The income statement charge or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense 
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

  Equity-settled awards granted by Monadelphous Group Limited to employees of subsidiaries are recognised in the parent’s 
separate financial statements as an additional investment in subsidiary with a corresponding credit to equity. As a result, the 
expense recognised by Monadelphous Group Limited in relation to equity-settled awards only represents the expense  
associated with grants to employees of the parent. The expense recognised by the Group is the total expense associated  
with all such awards. 

  Until an award has vested, any amounts recorded are contingent and will be adjusted if more or fewer awards vest than were 
originally anticipated to do so. Any award subject to market condition is considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that 
market condition is fulfilled, provided that all other conditions are satisfied. 

  If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been 
modified. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment 
arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee, as measured at the date of modification.  

  If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet 
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and 
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new award are treated as if they were  
a modification of an original award, as described in the previous paragraph. 

 The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings  
 per share.

u) Contributed equity

  Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options  
are recognised directly in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

v) Revenue recognition

  Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.  The following specific recognition 
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

 Rendering of Services 

 Where the contract outcome can be reliably measured:

 - r evenue is recognised at the time of billing to the customer for maintenance contracts or for construction contracts refer  
to the accounting policy for construction contracts, for method of revenue recognition. 

 Where the contract outcome cannot be reliably measured:

 -  contract costs are recognised as an expense as incurred, and where it is probable that the costs will be recovered, revenue  
is recognised only to the extent that costs have been inurred.

 Dividends

 Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the dividend payment is established.
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

v) Revenue recognition (continued)

 Interest income

  Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised  
cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the 
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset.

w) Construction contracts

  When accounting for construction contracts, the contracts are either combined or segmented if this is deemed necessary  
to reflect the substance of the agreement.

  Revenue arising from fixed price contracts is recognised in accordance with the percentage of completion method.   
Stage of completion is agreed with the customer on a work certified to date basis, as a percentage of the overall contract. 

  Revenue from cost plus contracts is recognised by reference to the recoverable costs incurred plus a percentage of fees  
earned during the financial year. The percentage of fee earned during the financial year is based on the stage of completion  
of the contract. 

  Where a loss is expected to occur from a construction contract the excess of the total expected contract costs over expected 
contract revenue is recognised as an expense immediately. 

x) Taxation

 Income tax

  Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from  
or paid to the taxation authorities based on the current period’s taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute  
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. 

  Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

 Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

 -  when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that 
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 
or

 -  when the taxable temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, 
and the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference 
 will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

  Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and 
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

 -  when the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset 
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss; or

 -  when the deductible temporary difference is associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates or interests in joint 
ventures, in which case a deferred tax asset is only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference  
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

  The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is  
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. 

  Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

  Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance 
sheet date.

  Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same  
taxation authority. 

 Tax consolidation legislation

  Monadelphous Group Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities formed a tax consolidated group on 1 July 
2003. The head entity, Monadelphous Group Limited and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to 
account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the separate taxpayer within group method in 
determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to members of the tax consolidated group.
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD)

x) Taxation (continued) 

 Goods and services tax (GST)

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:

 -  when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case  
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

 - receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

  The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in  
the balance sheet.

  Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are classified as operating  
cash flows.

 Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority.  

y) Earnings per share

  Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude any costs  
of servicing equity (other than dividends), divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted for any  
bonus element.

 Diluted EPS is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted for:

 - costs of servicing equity (other than dividends);

 -  the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as 
expenses; and 

 -  other non-discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during the period that would result from the dilution of potential 
ordinary shares;

  divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any  
bonus element.

z)  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

  The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to 
assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements and estimates on historical 
experience and on other various factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis 
of the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates under different assumptions and conditions. 

  Management has identified the following critical accounting policies for which significant judgements, estimates and assumptions 
are made. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions and may materially affect 
financial results or the financial position reported in future periods. 

  Further details of the nature of these assumptions and conditions may be found in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

 Recovery of deferred taxes

  Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences as management considers that it is probable that future 
taxable profits will be available to utilise those temporary differences. 

 Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

  The Group assesses impairment of all assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group and to the 
particular asset that may lead to impairment. If an impairment trigger exists the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. 

 Impairment of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives

  The group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This 
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite 
useful lives are allocated.  The assumptions used in this estimation of recoverable amount and the carrying amount of goodwill 
and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are discussed in note 10.

 Share-based payment transactions

  The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instrument 
at the date at which they are granted.  The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, using the 
assumptions detailed in note 23. The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based payments 
would have no impact on the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact 
expenses and equity. 
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2. summary of significant accounting policies (continueD) 

z)  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued) 

 Taxation

  The Group’s accounting policy for taxation requires management’s judgement as to the types of arrangements considered to  
be a tax on income in contrast to an operating cost. Judgement is also required in assessing whether deferred tax assets and 
certain deferred tax liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet. Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unrecouped 
tax losses, capital losses and temporary differences, are recognised only where it is considered more likely than not that they will 
be recovered, which is dependent on the generation of sufficient future taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities arising from 
temporary differences in investments, caused principally by retained earnings held in foreign tax jurisdictions, are recognised 
unless repatriation of retained earnings can be controlled and are not expected to occur in the foreseeable future. 

  Assumptions about the generation of future taxable profits and repatriation of retained earnings depend on management’s 
estimates of future cash flows. Judgements are also required about the application of income tax legislation. These judgements 
and assumptions are subject to risk and uncertainty, hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter 
expectations, which may impact the amount of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised on the balance sheet 
and the amount of other tax losses and temporary differences not yet recognised. In such circumstances, some or all of the 
carrying amounts of recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities may require adjustments, resulting in a corresponding credit  
or charge to the income statement. 

 Construction contracts

  When accounting for construction contracts, the contracts are either combined or segmented if this is deemed necessary  
to reflect the substance of the agreement. Revenue arising from fixed price contracts is recognised in accordance with the 
percentage of completion method.  Stage of completion is agreed with the customer on a work certified to date basis, as a 
percentage of the overall contract. Revenue from cost plus contracts is recognised by reference to the recoverable costs incurred 
plus a percentage of fees earned during the financial year. The percentage of fee earned during the financial year is based on  
the stage of completion of the contract. Where a loss is expected to occur from a construction contract the excess of the total 
expected contract costs over expected contract revenue is recognised as an expense immediately. 

 Workers compensation

  It is customary for all entities within the Construction and Engineering industry to be covered by workers’ compensation 
insurance. Payments under these policies are calculated differently depending on which state of Australia the entity is operating 
in.  Premiums are generally calculated based on actual wages paid and claims experience.  Wages are estimated at the 
beginning of each reporting period.  Final payments are made when each policy is closed out based on the difference between 
actual wages and the original estimated amount.  The amount of each payment varies depending on the number of incidents 
recorded during each period and the severity thereof.  The policies are closed out after a five year period through negotiation  
with the relevant insurance company.  The provision has been created to cover the expected costs associated with closing out 
each insurance policy and is adjusted accordingly based on the actual payroll incurred and the severity of incidents that have 
occurred during each period.
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Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

3. reVenues anD eXpenses

(a) Revenue

Rendering of services 953,991 963,717 - -

Dividends - - 56,000 54,212

Finance revenue 4,975 4,702 4,847 4,607

958,966 968,419 60,847 58,819

(b) Other income

Net gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,102 804 - -

Other income 316 772 - 449

7,418 1,576 - 449

(c) Finance costs

Bank loans and overdrafts 55 20 - -

Finance charges payable under finance 
leases and hire purchase contracts

1,823 1,506 - -

1,878 1,526 - -

(d) Depreciation

Depreciation expense 12,718 10,390 - -

(e) Employee benefits expense

Other employee benefits expense 18,233 34,248 - -

Defined contribution superannuation expense 19,159 18,845 - -

Share-based payment expense 444 571 - 571

37,836 53,664 - 571

(f) Lease payments and other expenses   
 included in the income statement

Minimum lease payments – operating lease 10,254 6,457 - -

Bad and doubtful debts 654 822 - -

Net loss on held for trading foreign currency derivatives 380 - 380 -

Net foreign exchange differences 52 581 - -
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Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

4. income taX

The major components of income tax expense are:

Income statement

Current income tax

 Current income tax charge 28,020 31,118 1,321 1,566

 Adjustments in respect of current 
 income tax of previous years 96 (27) (74) 5

Deferred income tax

 Relating to origination and reversal  
 of temporary differences

2,090 (4,674) (193) 52

Income tax expense/(benefit) reported in the income statement 30,206 26,417 1,054 1,623

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product 
of accounting profit before income tax multiplied by the 
Group’s applicable income tax rate is as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 99,749 86,835 60,312 59,030

At the Group’s statutory income tax rate of 30% (2007: 30%) 29,925 26,066 18,094 17,709

- Dividends received from subsidiary - - (16,800) (16,264)

- Other items (net) 185 378 (68) 173

- Exempt income - - (98) -

- (Over)/under provision of previous year 96 (27) (74) 5

Income tax expense/(benefit) reported in the income statement 30,206 26,417 1,054 1,623
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Balance Sheet Income Statement

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

4. income taX (continueD)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax at 30 June relates to the following:

CONSOLIDATED

Deferred tax liabilities

 Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (2,680) (1,475) 1,205 405

 Other (33) - 33 (176)

(2,713) (1,475)

CONSOLIDATED

Deferred tax assets

 Provisions 10,842 12,804 1,962 (4,902)

 Other 1,111 1 (1,110) (1)

Gross deferred income tax assets 11,953 12,805

Deferred tax income/(expense) 2,090 (4,674)

PARENT

Deferred tax assets

 Accruals 194 1 (193) 52

Gross deferred income tax assets 194 1

Deferred tax income/(expense) (193) 52

     

At 30 June 2008, there is no recognised or unrecognised deferred income tax liability (2007: $nil) for taxes that would be payable on 
the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, as the Group has no liability for additional 
taxation should such amounts be remitted. 

Tax Consolidation

Effective 1 July 2003, for the purposes of income taxation, Monadelphous Group Limited and its 100% owned Australian resided 
controlled entities formed a tax consolidated group.  The head entity of the tax consolidated group is Monadelphous Group Limited.  
Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding agreement. Members of the group have entered into a tax 
sharing agreement that provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its 
tax payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the financial statements in respect of this agreement on the basis that 
the possibility of default is remote.

Tax effect accounting by members of the tax consolidated group

Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding agreement. Allocations under the tax funding agreement are 
made at the end of each half-year. The allocation of taxes under the tax funding agreement is recognised as an increase/decrease in 
the subsidiaries’ inter-company accounts with the tax consolidated group head entity, Monadelphous Group Limited. The group has 
applied the separate taxpayer within group method in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes to allocate to members of 
the tax consolidated group. 



Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued) | 30 June 2008

Financial Statements | Monadelphous 2008 Annual Report: 78

Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

5. DiViDenDs paiD anD proposeD

(a) Recognised amounts

Declared and paid during the year

(i)    Current year interim

   Interim franked dividend for 2008 (29 cents 
per share) (2007: 22 cents per share) 24,452 18,212 24,452 18,212

(ii)  Previous year final plus special

   Final franked dividend for 2007 (44 cents per 
share) (2006: 24 cents per share final) 36,543 19,576 36,543 19,576

(b) Unrecognised amounts

  Current year final

   Final franked dividend for 2008 (43 cents 
per share) (2007: 44 cents per share) 36,257 36,543 36,257 36,543

(c) Franking credit balance

 The amount of franking credits available for 
the subsequent financial year are:

 -  franking account balance as at the end of the financial year 31,681 25,269 31,681 25,269

-  franking credits that will arise from the payment of 
income tax payable as at the end of the financial year

10,908 14,793 10,908 14,793

-  franking credits that will arise from the receipt 
of dividends from subsidiary companies

- - - -

-  franking debits that will arise from the payment of 
dividends as at the end of the financial year

- - - -

42,589 40,062 42,589 40,062

 The amount of franking credits available 
for future reporting periods:

-  impact on the franking account of dividends 
proposed or declared before the financial report 
was authorised for issue but not recognised as a 
distribution to equity holders during the period (15,539) (15,661) (15,539) (15,661)

27,050 24,401 27,050 24,401
 

(d)  Tax rates

The tax rate at which paid dividends have been franked is 30% (2007: 30%). Dividends payable will be franked at the rate of 30% 
(2007: 30%).
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Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

6. traDe anD other receiVaBles

CURRENT

Trade receivables 148,205 96,034 - -

Less allowance for impairment loss 6(a) (3,082) (2,424) - -

145,123 93,610 - -

Other debtors 6(b) 59,744 2,362 163 114

204,867 95,972 163 114

NON-CURRENT

Related party receivables

- controlled entities – interest bearing 6(c),26 - - 4,384 5,299

- controlled entities – non-interest bearing 6(c),26 - - 314,978 274,382

- - 319,362 279,681

(a) Allowance for impairment loss

Trade receivables are generally on 30 day terms from end of 
month. A provision for impairment loss is recognised when 
there is objective evidence that an individual trade receivable is 
impaired. An impairment loss of $658,000 (2007: $847,000) 
has been recognised by the Group in the current year. These 
amounts have been included in the administrative expenses 
item in the income statement.

Movements in the allowance for impairment loss  
were as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,424       1,577 - -

Charge for the year 654 822 - -

Other 4 25 - -

Balance at the end of the year 3,082 2,424 - -



Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued) | 30 June 2008

Financial Statements | Monadelphous 2008 Annual Report: 80

6. traDe anD other receiVaBles (continueD)

(a) Allowance for impairment loss (continued)

Impaired Trade Receivables:

At 30 June 2008, the current trade receivables of the Group were $148,205,000 (2007: $96,034,000). The amount of the allowance 
for impairment losses was $3,082,000 (2007: $2,424,000). An impairment provision is recognised where there is objective evidence 
that the Group will not be able to collect the receivable. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments or debts more than 60 
days overdue are considered objective evidence of impairment. The amount of the impairment loss is the receivable carrying amount 
compared to the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Past Due Not Impaired:

At 30 June 2008, the ageing of receivables past due but not considered impaired is as follows:

Consolidated

2008
$’000

2007 
$’000

31 – 60 Days 19,663 18,626

61 – 90 Days 4,171 2,583

+ 91 Days 4,508 7,764

TOTAL 28,342 28,973

Payment terms on these amounts have not been re-negotiated however credit has been stopped where the credit limit has been 
exceeded. In this case, payment terms will not be extended. Each company/business unit has been in direct contact with the  
relevant debtor and is satisfied that payment will be received in full.  

Receivables not impaired or past due:

Other balances within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is expected that these 
other balances will be received when due. 

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on 
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. Publicly available credit information from recognised providers is utilised  
for this purpose where available. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s 
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

(b) Other debtors

Other debtors, which includes accrued sales, are non-interest bearing and have repayment terms between 30 to 60 days. 

(c)  Related party receivables

Details of the terms and conditions of related party receivables are set out in note 26. 

(d)  Fair value, credit risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk

Detail regarding fair value and credit, foreign exchange and interest rate risk is disclosed in note 28.
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Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

7. inVentories

Construction work in progress

Cost incurred to date plus profit recognised 964,933 869,726 - -

Consideration received and receivable as progress billings (1,144,774) (921,038) - -

Retentions 382 2 - -

(179,459) (51,310) - -

Amounts due to customers 7(a),12 186,030 64,385 - -

Amounts due from customers 6,571 13,075 - -

(a)    Advances received for construction work not yet 
commenced or for committed subcontractor work 
not yet received are recognised as a current liability 
in trade and other payables.  Refer note 12.

8.   inVestments in suBsiDiaries 
(non-current)

Investments in controlled entities 26 - - 33,729 33,284
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9. property, plant anD eQuipment

(a)  Reconciliation of carrying amounts at the beginning and end of the period

Consolidated Monadelphous 
Group Limited

Freehold 
land  

$’000

Buildings 
on freehold 

land  
$’000

Leasehold 
improvements 

$’000

Plant and 
equipment 

$’000

Plant and 
equipment 
under hire 
purchase 

$’000
Total 

$’000
Total  

$’000

Year ended 30 June 2008

At 1 July 2007 net of 
accumulated depreciation

2,710 6,378 351 19,268 33,533 62,240 -

Additions 166 799 - 7,176 8,972 17,113 -

Assets transferred - 32 (32) 3,443 (3,443) - -

Disposals - (550) - (4,161) - (4,711) -

Depreciation charge - (310) (38) (6,060) (6,310) (12,718) -

At 30 June 2008 net of 
accumulated depreciation 2,876 6,349 281 19,666 32,752 61,924 -

At 30 June 2008

Cost 2,876 9,160 385 51,073 47,492 110,986 -

Accumulated depreciation - (2,811) (104) (31,407) (14,740) (49,062) -

Net carrying amount 2,876 6,349 281 19,666 32,752 61,924 -

Consolidated Monadelphous 
Group Limited

Freehold 
land  

$’000

Buildings 
on freehold 

land  
$’000

Leasehold 
improvements 

$’000

Plant and 
equipment 

$’000

Plant and 
equipment 
under hire 
purchase 

$’000
Total 

$’000
Total  

$’000

Year ended 30 June 2007

At 1 July 2006 net of 
accumulated depreciation

1,605 4,204 394 11,657 29,681 47,541 -

Additions - 663 - 8,533 10,208 19,404 -

Additions through acquisitions 1,105 1,770 - 2,708 365 5,948 -

Assets transferred - - - 992 (992) - -

Disposals - (4) - (259) - (263) -

Depreciation charge - (255) (43) (4,363) (5,729) (10,390) -

At 30 June 2007 net of 
accumulated depreciation 2,710 6,378 351 19,268 33,533 62,240 -

At 30 June 2007

Cost 2,710 8,917 430 47,877 45,307 105,241 -

Accumulated depreciation - (2,539) (79) (28,609) (11,774) (43,001) -

Net carrying amount 2,710 6,378 351 19,268 33,533 62,240 -
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9. property, plant anD eQuipment (continueD)

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security

Assets under hire purchase are pledged as security for the associated hire purchase liabilities.

Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

Assets pledged as security 32,752 33,533 - -

10. gooDWill

Opening balance 2,551 2,311 - -

Acquisition of subsidiary - 974 - -

Adjustment to acquisition in prior year 
accounted for provisionally 10(b) - (734) - -

Closing balance 2,551 2,551 - -

(a)  Impairment Testing of Goodwill

After initial recognition, goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured as cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
Goodwill is not amortised but is subject to impairment testing on an annual basis or whenever there is an indication of impairment. 

Goodwill acquired through a business combination has been allocated to cash-generating units (‘CGU’) for impairment testing 
purposes. The cash-generating units are the entities MI & E Holdings Pty Ltd (goodwill of $2,311,000) and Ellavale Engineering Pty 
Limited (goodwill of $240,000). The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in use 
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five year period. Cash flows 
beyond the five year period have not been used in the calculation.

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15% for both MI & E Holdings Pty Ltd and Ellavale Engineering Pty Limited 
(2007: 10%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the entities is based on the entity’s budgeted cash flows. No 
reasonable possible changes in key assumptions would result in the carrying amount exceeding the recoverable amount.

(b)  Adjustment to acquisition in prior year accounted for provisionally

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Ellavale Engineering Pty Limited has been revised downwards as a result of the calculation 
of the allocable cost amounts of assets at the date of acquisition and the corresponding adjustment to deferred tax. The amount of 
the adjustment was $734,000. There has been no impact on the impairment of goodwill as a result of these adjustments. 

11. inVestments accounteD for using the eQuity methoD

(a)  Interest in Joint Venture Partnership

FMSJV  Balance Date 31 December

The percentage ownership interest in the joint venture is 50%. FMSJV has a balance date of 31 December because it coincides with 
the other joint venture party’s reporting date. Accounts are prepared at 30 June from which the equity accounting is based. 

(i) Principal activities

FMSJV  Provision of certain asset management support services for an alumina refinery at Gladstone, Queensland.
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Consolidated

2008
 $’000

2007 
$’000

11. inVestments accounteD for using the eQuity  
  methoD (continueD)

(ii) Share of the joint venture partnerships’ profits

 Share of the joint venture partnerships’:

   -  revenues 19,891 18,687

   -  expenses (18,302) (17,428)

   -  net profit 1,589 1,259

(iii) Share of joint venture partnerships’ assets and liabilities

   Current assets 1,593 1,236

   Non-current assets - -

   Current liabilities (1,417) (1,129)

   Non-current liabilities - -

   Net assets 176 107

Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

12. traDe anD other payaBles

CURRENT

Trade payables 12(a) 25,748 29,169 - 7

Advances on construction work in progress 
– Amounts due to customers 7 186,030 64,385 - -

Sundry creditors and accruals 12(a) 28,663 22,338 448 355

Related party payables 12(b),26 - - 380,747 313,476

240,441 115,892 381,195 313,838

(a) Terms and conditions 

Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments:

(i) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms. 

(ii) Sundry creditors and accruals are non interest bearing and have an average term of 45 days. 

(b) Related party payables

Details of the terms and conditions of related party payables are set out in note 26. 

(c)  Fair value, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk

Detail regarding fair value and foreign exchange, interest rate and liquidity risk is disclosed in note 28.
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Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

13.  interest Bearing loans 
anD BorroWings

CURRENT

Hire purchase liability – secured 13(a),20 11,546 10,475 - -

Bank loan – secured 13(a) 212 82 - -

11,758 10,557 - -

NON-CURRENT

Hire purchase liability – secured 13(a),20 12,419 16,651 - -

Bank loan – secured 13(a) 705 278 - -

13,124 16,929 - -

(a)  Terms and conditions

(i)    The bank loans are repayable monthly. Interest is charged at the bank’s fixed rate. The bank loans are secured by   
way of a registered first mortgage over land and buildings of a controlled entity, with an interlocking debenture from

 the parent entity and controlled entities. The average discount rate implicit in the bank loans is 8.54% (2007: 7.00%). 

(ii)   Hire purchase agreements have an average term of 3 years.  The average discount rate implicit in the hire purchase 
is 7.71% (2007: 6.93%).  The hire purchase liability is secured by a charge over the hire purchase assets. 

(b)  Fair value and interest rate and liquidity risk

Detail regarding fair value and interest rate and liquidity risk is disclosed in note 28. 

(c)  Defaults and breaches

During the current and prior years, there were no defaults or breaches on any of the loans. 

Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous Group 

Limited

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

14. proVisions

CURRENT

Employee benefits 17,662 23,660 - -

Workers’ compensation 14(a) 12,774 12,116 - -

30,436 35,776 - -

NON-CURRENT 

Employee benefits – long service leave 2,265 2,034 - -
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14. proVisions (continueD)

(a)  Workers’ compensation

  It is customary for all entities within the Construction and Engineering industry to be covered by workers’ compensation insurance. 
Payments under these policies are calculated differently depending on which state of Australia the entity is operating in.  Premiums 
are generally calculated based on actual wages paid and claims experience.  Wages are estimated at the beginning of each reporting 
period.  Final payments are made when each policy is closed out based on the difference between actual wages and the original 
estimated amount.  The amount of each payment varies depending on the number of incidents recorded during each period and the 
severity thereof.  The policies are closed out after a five year period through negotiation with the relevant insurance company.  The 
provision has been created to cover the expected costs associated with closing out each insurance policy and is adjusted accordingly 
based on the actual payroll incurred and the severity of incidents that have occurred during each period.

Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2008 
$’000

(b)  Movements in provisions

(i)  Workers compensation

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 12,116 -

Additional provision 4,109 -

Amounts utilised during the year (3,451) -

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year 12,774 -

Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

15. DeriVatiVe financial instruments

CURRENT

Forward currency contracts – held for trading 345 - 345 -

Derivative financial instruments are used by the Group in the normal course of business in order to manage exposure to 
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. 

(i)  Forward currency contracts – held for trading 

 The Group has entered into forward exchange contracts which are economic hedges but do not satisfy the requirements for 
hedge accounting. 

Notional Amounts 
AUD

Average  
Exchange Rate

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 2007 

Buy US$ Maturity 0-12 months

 Consolidated 10,413 - 0.9244 -

 Parent 10,413 - 0.9244 -

 These contracts are fair valued by comparing the contracted rate to the market rates for contracts with the same length of maturity.  
All movements in fair value are recognised in the profit or loss in the period they occur. The net fair value loss on foreign currency 
derivatives during the year was $380,000 for the Group (2007: $nil) and $380,000 for the Company (2007: $nil).
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Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

16. contriButeD eQuity

Issued and paid up capital

Ordinary shares 28,678 26,017 28,678 26,017

2008 2007

Number of 
shares $’000

Number of 
shares $’000

(a)  Movements in shares on issue

Beginning of the financial year 83,052,532 26,017 81,568,408 21,063

Issued during the year

-  Exercise of employee options 1,265,000 2,661 1,215,000 2,204

- Acquisition consideration - - 269,124 2,750

End of the financial year 84,317,532 28,678 83,052,532 26,017

(b)  Share options

Options over ordinary shares

During the financial year, there were no options issued over ordinary shares. 

At the end of the year there were 2,570,000 (2007: 3,885,000) unissued ordinary shares in respect of which options were outstanding 
(Note 23).

(c)  Terms and conditions of contributed equity

Ordinary shares

 Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of the winding up of the company, to participate in 
the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held.

Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the company. 



Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements (Continued) | 30 June 2008

Financial Statements | Monadelphous 2008 Annual Report: 88

16. contriButeD eQuity (continueD)

(d)   Capital management

Capital is managed by the Group’s Chief Financial Officer in conjunction with the Group’s Finance & Accounting department. 
Management continually monitor the Group’s net cash/debt position and the gearing levels to ensure efficiency and compliance with 
debt covenants. At 30 June 2008, the Group is in a net cash position of $101,565,000 (2007: $73,878,000) and has a debt to equity 
ratio of 24.4% (2007: 30.4%) which is within the Group’s net cash and debt to equity target levels. 

 During the year ended 30 June 2008, management paid dividends of $60,995,198. The policy is to payout dividends of 80% to  
100% of net profit, subject to ongoing strong trading conditions and any need for significant cash requirements for investment 
opportunities, should they arise. 

The capital of the company is considered to be contributed equity.

Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

17.  reserVes anD retaineD earnings

Foreign currency translation reserve 17(b) (311) 6 - -

Share-based payment reserve 17(b) 1,759 1,315 1,759 1,315

1,448 1,321 1,759 1,315

Retained earnings 17(a) 71,691 63,143 48,958 50,695

(a)  Movements in retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 63,143 39,343 50,695 27,169

Transferred from capital profits reserve - 678 - -

Transferred from asset revaluation reserve - 492 - 3,907

 Net profit attributable to members of 
Monadelphous Group Limited 69,543 60,418 59,258 57,407

Total available for appropriation 132,686 100,931 109,953 88,483

Dividends paid (60,995) (37,788) (60,995) (37,788)

Balance at the end of the year 71,691 63,143 48,958 50,695
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17.  reserVes anD retaineD earnings (continueD)

 (b)  Movements in reserves

Consolidated Monadelphous Group Limited

Capital 
profits 
reserve 
$’000

Asset 
reval-
uation 

reserve 
$’000

Foreign 
currency 

trans-
lation 

reserve 
$’000

Share- 
based 

payment 
reserve 
$’000

Total 
$’000

Asset 
reval-
uation 

reserve 
$’000

Share- 
based 

payment 
reserve 
$’000

Total 
$’000

At 1 July 2006 678 492 (186) 744 1,728 3,907 744 4,651

Transfer to retained earnings (678) (492) - - (1,170) (3,907) - (3,907)

Foreign currency translation - - 192 - 192 - - -

Share-based payment - - - 571 571 - 571 571

At 30 June 2007 - - 6 1,315 1,321 - 1,315 1,315

Foreign currency translation - - (317) - (317) - - -

Share-based payment - - - 444 444 - 444 444

At 30 June 2008 - - (311) 1,759 1,448 - 1,759 1,759
        

(c)  Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital profits reserve

 The capital profits reserve was used to accumulate realised capital profits. The reserve can be used to pay dividends or issue bonus 
shares.

Asset revaluation reserve

 The asset revaluation reserve was used to record increments and decrements in the value of non-current assets prior to the first time 
adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards. The reserve can be used to pay dividends in limited 
circumstances.

 Foreign currency translation reserve

 The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from translation of the financial statements of 
foreign subsidiaries.

Share-based payment reserve

 The share-based payment reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to employees and directors as part of their 
remuneration. Refer to note 23 for further details of these plans.
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Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

18. cash floW statement

(a)   Reconciliation of net profit after tax to 
the net cash flows from operations

 

Net profit 69,543 60,418 59,258 57,407

Non cash items

Depreciation of non-current assets 12,718 10,390 - -

Net profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (7,102) (804) - -

Dividends received from subsidiary - - (56,000) (54,212)

Share-based payment expense 444 571 - 571

Unrealised foreign exchange gain 52 581 - -

Other 4 - - -

Changes in assets and liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in receivables (108,895) (11,975) (49) (114)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 6,504 3,729 - -

(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets 2,718 (3,882) (193) 52

(Increase)/decrease in investment in joint ventures (69) (107) - -

(Increase)/decrease in investment in subsidiary - - (445) -

Increase/(decrease) in payables 124,549 19,252 (25,512) (30,554)

Charges to provisions (5,068) 13,823 - -

Increase/(decrease) in derivative instruments 345 - 345 -

Increase/(decrease) in current tax liability (3,380) 5,104 (3,885) 6,201

Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities 106 (792) - -

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 92,469 96,308 (26,481) (20,649)

(b)  For the purposes of the Cash Flow 
Statement, cash and cash equivalents 
comprise the following at 30 June:

Cash balances comprises

-  Cash at bank 101,291 64,851 93,239 57,065

-  Short term deposits 25,156 36,513 25,156 36,513

126,447 101,364 118,395 93,578
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Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

18. cash floW statement (continueD) 

(c) Financing facilities available

At balance date the following financing facilities 
had been negotiated and were available

Total facilities:

- Bank guarantee and insurance bonds (i) 165,000 145,000 165,000 145,000

- Revolving credit (ii) 55,124 54,593 55,124 54,593

220,124 199,593 220,124 199,593

Facilities used at balance date:

- Bank guarantee and insurance bonds 153,763 70,240 153,763 70,240

- Revolving credit 24,882 27,486 24,882 27,486

178,645 97,726 178,645 97,726

Facilities unused at balance date:

- Bank guarantee and insurance bonds 11,237 74,760 11,237 74,760

- Revolving credit 30,242 27,107 30,242 27,107

41,479 101,867 41,479 101,867

(i) Bank guarantees and insurance bonds 

The contractual term of the bank guarantees and insurance bonds match the underlying obligation to which it relates.  

(ii) Revolving credit

The revolving credit includes bank loans and hire purchase/leasing facilities. Refer to Note 13(a) for terms and conditions. 

(d) Non-cash financing and investing activities     

Hire purchase transactions:     

During the year the consolidated entity acquired plant and equipment by means of hire purchase agreements with an aggregate fair 
market value of $8,971,914 (2007: $10,208,111).
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19. change in composition of entity

 On 28 November 2007, Monadelphous Group Limited obtained 100% ownership of Moway International Limited, a dormant company 
incorporated in Hong Kong. In addition, SinoStruct Pty Ltd was incorporated in Australia on 20 December 2007 and is a 100% 
owned subsidiary of Monadelphous Group Limited. 

Notes Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

20. commitments anD contingencies

(a)  Hire purchase commitments

Payable:

- Not later than one year 12,859 11,966 - -

- Later than one year but not later than five years 13,360 17,717 - -

Minimum lease payments 26,219 29,683 - -

Less future finance charges (2,254) (2,557) - -

Present value of minimum lease payments 23,965 27,126 - -

Current liability 13 11,546 10,475 - -

Non-current liability 13 12,419 16,651 - -

23,965 27,126 - -

Hire purchase agreements have an 
average term of 3 years. 

(b)  Operating lease commitments

Minimum lease payments

- Not later than one year 14,229 7,931 - -

- Later than one year but not later than five years 13,257 9,747 - -

-  Aggregate lease expenditure  contracted 
for at balance date but not provided for 27,486 17,678 - -

Operating leases have an average lease term of 3 
years. Assets which are the subject of operating leases 
include motor vehicles, cranes and properties.

(c) Capital commitments 

The consolidated group has capital commitments of 
$2,898,961 at 30 June 2008 (2007: $2,405,625).

(d) Guarantees

Guarantees given to various clients for 
satisfactory contract performance 153,763 70,240 153,763 70,240
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20. commitments & contingencies  (continueD)

Monadelphous Group Limited and all controlled entities marked * in Note 26 have entered into a deed of cross guarantee pursuant to 
the ASIC Class Order made on 12 April 1995, 3 July 2001, 30 June 2005 and 29 June 2007 whereby they covenant with a trustee for 
the benefit of each creditor, that they guarantee to each creditor payment in full of any debt in the event of any entity, including 
Monadelphous Group Limited, being wound up.

21. segment information

Revenue is principally derived by the consolidated entity from the provision of engineering services to the resources, energy and 
infrastructure industry sector. For the year ended 30 June 2008, the Engineering Construction division contributed revenue of $576.0 
million, Maintenance and Industrial Services division contributed revenue of $316.7 million, Electrical and Instrumentation Services 
contributed revenue of $76.0 million and Skystar Airport Services contributed revenue of $14.7 million. Included in these amounts is 
$29.4 million of inter-entity revenue, which is eliminated on consolidation. The Electrical and Instrumentation Services division and 
Skystar Airport Services are not considered material for segment reporting. 

The directors do not believe that it is practicable to provide further analysis of the results by reporting division for the following 
reasons:

- The significant divisions perform similar services for the same industry sector; 

- The divisions utilise a centralised pool of engineering assets and shared services; and

- The migrant nature of employees between divisions.

The aforementioned points do not support the creation of reportable segments within the business. The two significant divisions are 
exposed to similar risks and rewards from operations and are only segmented to facilitate appropriate management structures. 

The consolidated entity operates predominately within the one business segment in one geographical segment, namely Australia. 

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

22. earnings per share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the 
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 69,543 60,418

Earnings used in calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share 69,543 60,418

2008
Number

2007
Number

Number of Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue used in the calculation of basic EPS 83,574,431 82,136,294

Effect of dilutive securities

Share options 2,056,878 2,801,589

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share 85,631,309 84,937,883

Conversions, calls, subscriptions or issues after 30 June 2008:
Since the end of the financial year, no holders of employee options have exercised the rights of conversion to acquire ordinary shares.
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23. employee Benefits anD superannuation commitments

(a)  Share-based Payment Plan 

The Monadelphous Group Limited Employee Option Plan has been established where eligible directors and employees of the 
consolidated entity are issued with options over the ordinary shares of Monadelphous Group Limited. The options, issued for nil 
consideration, are issued in accordance with the guidelines established by the Remuneration Committee of Monadelphous Group 
Limited. The options issued carry various terms and exercising conditions. There is currently 1 director and 63 employees 
participating in this scheme.

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices of and movements in options granted under the 
Monadelphous Group Limited Employee Option Plan during the year.

2008 2007

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average  
exercise 

price
Number of 

options

Weighted 
average  
exercise 

price

Balance at the beginning of the year 3,885,000 $2.56 4,930,000 $2.14

- Granted during the year - - 190,000 $9.06

- Forfeited during the year (50,000) $3.61 (20,000) $4.71

- Exercised during the year (1,265,000) $2.10 (1,215,000)  $1.81

Balance at the end of the year 2,570,000 $2.77 3,885,000 $2.56

Exercisable during the next year 2,247,500 $2.21 1,265,000 $2.10

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options was $11.42 (2007: $9.36).

There were no options granted by Monadelphous Group Limited during the year ended 30 June 2008. The fair value of each option 
issued during the previous year was estimated on the date of grant using a Binomial option-pricing model. The following weighted 
average assumptions were used for grants made in January 2007:

The dividend yield reflects the assumption that the current dividend payout will continue with no anticipated increases.  The expected 
life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur.  The expected 
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which also may not necessarily be the actual 
outcome. No other features of options granted were incorporated into the measurement of fair value. 

The resulting weighted average fair values for options outstanding at 30 June 2008 are:

Number Grant Date Final Vesting Date Fair Value Per Option

2,110,000 31/01/2005 31/01/2009 $0.29

270,000 19/01/2006 31/01/2010 $1.31

190,000 31/01/2007 31/01/2011 $2.16

The share-based payment expense for the year ended 30 June 2008 was $443,569 (2007: $571,042) for the consolidated entity and 
$nil (2007: $571,042) for the parent.

Options granted during the reporting period

There were no options granted by Monadelphous Group Limited to directors and employees during the year. 

2007

Dividend yield 4.00%

Expected volatility 35.00%

Historical volatility 35.00%

Risk-free interest rate 6.10%

Expected life of option 25% - 2 years

25% - 3 years

50% - 4 years
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23. employee Benefits anD superannuation commitments (continueD)

(a)  Share-based Payment Plan (continued)

Options held as at the end of the reporting period

The following table summarises information about options held by the employees as at 30 June 2008:

Number of options Grant date Vesting date Expiry date
Weighted average 

exercise price

2,110,000 31/01/2005 01/01/2009 31/01/2009 $1.95

90,000 19/01/2006 01/01/2009 31/01/2009 $4.71

180,000 19/01/2006 01/01/2010 31/01/2010 $4.71

47,500 31/01/2007 01/01/2009 31/01/2009 $9.06

47,500 31/01/2007 01/01/2010 31/01/2010 $9.06

95,000 31/01/2007 01/01/2011 31/01/2011 $9.06

(b)   Superannuation Commitments

Employees and the employer contribute to a number of complying accumulation funds at varying percentages of salaries and wages.  
The consolidated entity’s contributions are not legally enforceable other than those payable in terms of ratified award obligations 
required by the Occupational Superannuation Act.  

24. key management personnel

(a)  Compensation for Key Management Personnel

Consolidated Parent

2008
$

2007
$

2008
$

2007
$

Short Term Benefits 3,180,398 2,172,664 - -

Post Employment 78,780 63,372 - -

Share-Based Payments 113,444 127,872 - -

Other 10,907 6,590 - -

Total Compensation 3,383,529 2,370,498 - -

(b)  Option holdings of Key Management Personnel

Balance at  
beginning of  

period  
1 July 2007

Granted as  
Remuneration

Options  
Exercised

Net Change 
Other

Balance at end  
of period  

30 June 2008

Directors

C. G. B. Rubino - - - - -

R. Velletri 450,000 - (150,000) - 300,000

I. Tollman - - - - -

P. J. Dempsey - - - - -

C. Michelmore - - - - -

Executives

D. Foti 240,000 - (80,000) - 160,000

A. Erdash 150,000 - (50,000) - 100,000

M. Jansen 150,000 - (50,000) - 100,000

G. Everist 250,000 - (150,000) - 100,000

S. Murray 50,000 - - - 50,000

Total 1,290,000 - (480,000) - 810,000
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24. key management personnel (continueD)

(b)  Option holdings of Key Management Personnel (continued)

Balance at  
beginning of  

period  
1 July 2006

Granted as  
Remuneration

Options  
Exercised

Net Change 
Other

Balance at end  
of period  

30 June 2007

Directors

C. G. B. Rubino - - - - -

R. Velletri 600,000 - (150,000) - 450,000

I. Tollman - - - - -

P. J. Dempsey - - - - -

Executives

D. Foti 320,000 - (80,000) - 240,000

A. Erdash 300,000 - (150,000) - 150,000

M. Jansen 200,000 - (50,000) - 150,000

G. Everist 350,000 - (100,000) - 250,000

Total 1,770,000 - (530,000) - 1,240,000

(c)  Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel

Shares held in 
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

Balance at 
 beginning of  

period  
1 July 2007

Granted as  
Remuneration

On Exercise  
of Options

Net Change 
Other

Balance at end  
of period  

30 June 2008

Directors

C. G. B. Rubino 4,004,000 - - (1,000,000) 3,004,000

R. Velletri 1,550,000 - 150,000 - 1,700,000

I. Tollman 667,586 - - - 667,586

P. J. Dempsey 68,000 - - - 68,000

C. P. Michelmore - - - 7,664 7,664

Executives

D. Foti 406,816 - 80,000 - 486,816

A. Erdash 243,931 - 50,000 (28,391) 265,540

M. Jansen 326,244 - 50,000 (76,000) 300,244

G. Everist 169,869 - 150,000 (9,869) 310,000

S. Murray 720,000 - - (240,000) 480,000

Total 8,156,446 - 480,000 (1,346,596) 7,289,850
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24. key management personnel (continueD)

(c)  Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel (continued)

Shares held in 
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

Balance at 
 beginning of  

period  
1 July 2006

Granted as  
Remuneration

On Exercise  
of Options

Net Change 
Other

Balance at end  
of period  

30 June 2007

Directors

C. G. B. Rubino 4,004,000 - - - 4,004,000

R. Velletri 1,400,000 - 150,000 - 1,550,000

I. Tollman 706,152 - - (38,566) 667,586

P. J. Dempsey 58,000 - - 10,000 68,000

Executives

D. Foti 326,816 - 80,000 - 406,816

A. Erdash 232,000 - 150,000 (138,069) 243,931

M. Jansen 426,244 - 50,000 (150,000) 326,244

G. Everist 60,000 - 100,000 9,869 169,869

Total 7,213,212 - 530,000 (306,766) 7,436,446

(d) Loans to Key Management Personnel

(i) Details of aggregates of loans to Key Management Personnel are as follows:

No directors or executives had any loans during the reporting period.

(e)  Other transactions and balances with Key Management Personnel

There were no other transactions and balances with Key Management Personnel.

Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$

2007 
$

2008 
$

2007 
$

25. auDitors’ remuneration

The auditor of Monadelphous Group 
Limited is Ernst & Young.

Amounts received or due and receivable 
by Ernst & Young Australia for:

-  An audit or review of the financial report of the entity 
and any other entity in the consolidated entity

145,575 166,430 8,250 7,500

-  Other services in relation to the entity and 
any other entity in the consolidated entity

 - tax compliance 276,874 186,379 65,782 5,178

 - assurance related 46,499 - 33,939 -

468,948 352,809 107,971 12,678

Amounts received or due and receivable 
by Ernst & Young Australia for:

- Due diligence services 155,338 - 155,338 -

624,286 352,809 263,309 12,678
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26. relateD party Disclosures

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Monadelphous Group Limited and subsidiaries:

Name Country of 
Incorporation

Percentage Held by 
Consolidated Entity Parent Entity Investment

2008  
%

2007  
%

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

Parent:

Monadelphous Group Limited

Controlled entities of Monadelphous Group Limited:

*Monadelphous Engineering Associates Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 14,108 13,664

Skystar Airport Services Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 423 423

*Monadelphous Properties Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 1,941 1,941

*Monadelphous Engineering Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 1,969 1,969

*Genco Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 342 342

*Monadelphous Workforce Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 370 370

*MBF Workforce Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 215 215

*MI & E Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 4,516 4,516

*Ellavale Engineering Pty Limited Australia 100 100 9,844 9,844

Monadelphous PNG Ltd
Papua  

New Guinea
100 100 - -

Skystar Airport Services Holdings Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 - -

Skystar Airport Services NZ Pty Ltd New Zealand 100 100 - -

Moway International Limited Hong Kong 100 - 1 -

SinoStruct Pty Ltd Australia 100 - - -

33,729 33,284

* Controlled entities subject to the Class Order

Pursuant to Class Order 98/1418, relief has been granted to these controlled entities of Monadelphous Group Limited from the 
Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and publication of accounts. 

As a condition of the Class Order, Monadelphous Group Limited and the controlled entities subject to the Class Order, entered into  
a deed of indemnity on 12 April 1995, 3 July 2001, 30 June 2005 and 29 June 2007.  The effect of the deed is that Monadelphous 
Group Limited has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of winding up of these controlled entities.  The controlled entities 
have also given a similar guarantee in the event that Monadelphous Group Limited is wound up.

The consolidated income statement and balance sheet of the entities that are members of the ‘Closed Group’ are as follows:

CLOSED GROUP

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

Consolidated Income Statement

Profit before income tax 91,213 85,709

Income tax expense (27,518) (25,935)

Net profit after tax for the period 63,695 59,774

Retained earnings at the beginning of the period 62,970 39,176

Adjust for Skystar Airport Services Pty Ltd accumulated losses - 638

Transferred from capital profits reserve - 678

Transferred from asset revaluation reserve - 492

Dividends paid (60,995) (37,788)

Retained earnings at the end of the period 65,670 62,970
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26. relateD party Disclosures (continueD)

CLOSED GROUP

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

Consolidated Balance Sheet

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 118,479 97,596

Trade and other receivables 202,544 92,066

Inventories 6,385 11,772

Total current assets 327,408 201,434

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables - 5,147

Investments in subsidiaries 424 423

Property, plant and equipment 57,653 55,746

Deferred tax assets 8,979 10,740

Goodwill 2,551 2,551

Investments accounted for using the equity method 176 107

Total non-current assets 69,783 74,714

TOTAL ASSETS 397,191 276,148

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 233,460 107,527

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 11,758 10,517

Income tax payable 10,908 14,793

Provisions 29,311 34,200

Derivative financial instruments 345 -

Total current liabilities 285,782 167,037

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 13,124 16,929

Provisions 2,178 1,880

Total non-current liabilities 15,302 18,809

TOTAL LIABILITIES 301,084 185,846

NET ASSETS 96,107 90,302

EQUITY

Contributed equity 28,678 26,017

Reserves 1,759 1,315

Retained earnings 65,670 62,970

TOTAL EQUITY 96,107 90,302
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26. relateD party Disclosures (continueD)

Wholly-owned group transactions

Loans

During the year, funds have been advanced between entities within the consolidated entity for the purposes of working capital 
requirements only.  The aggregate of amounts due from wholly owned controlled entities at balance date is $319,362,252  
(2007: $279,681,427). Loans to Monadelphous PNG Limited and Skystar Airport Services NZ Pty Ltd totalling $4,384,206  
(2007: $5,299,633) are interest bearing and repayable over 4 years. Other loans to wholly owned controlled entities totalling 
$314,978,046 (2007: $274,381,794) are interest free and have no fixed repayment date. 

The aggregate amount payable by the parent entity to wholly-owned controlled entities at the balance date is $380,746,860  
(2007: $313,475,627).  The amounts are interest free and repayable on demand.

Ultimate parent

Monadelphous Group Limited is the ultimate holding company.  

27. eVents after the Balance sheet Date

There are no matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated 
entity in subsequent financial years.

On 18 August 2008, the directors of Monadelphous Group Limited declared a final dividend on ordinary shares in respect of the  
2008 financial year. The total amount of the dividend is $36,256,539 which represents a fully franked final dividend of 43 cents per 
share. This dividend has not been provided for in the 30 June 2008 Financial Statements. 

28. financial risk management oBJectiVes anD policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables, bank loans, finance leases and hire purchase contracts, 
cash, short-term deposits and derivatives. 

The Group is exposed to financial risks which arise directly from its operations. The Group has policies and measures in place to 
manage financial risks encountered by the business. 

Primary responsibility for the identification of financial risks rests with the Board. The Board determines policies for the management 
of financial risks. It is the responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer and senior management to implement the policies set by the 
Board and for the constant day to day management of the Group’s financial risks. The Board reviews these policies on a regular  
basis to ensure that they continue to address the risks faced by the Group. 

The Group will enter into forward exchange contracts in order to manage its foreign currency risk arising from significant supplier 
contracts in foreign currencies. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency 
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s policy to minimise risk from fluctuations in interest rates is to utilise fixed interest rates  
in its bank loans, finance leases and hire purchase contracts. Cash and short term deposits are exposed to floating interest rate risks. 
Analysis is performed on customers’ credit rating prior to signing contracts and analysis is performed regularly of credit exposures 
and aged debt to manage credit and liquidity risk. 

The policies in place for managing the financial risks encountered by the Group are summarised below. 

(a) Risk Exposures and Responses

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to variable interest rates is as follows: 

Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 126,447 101,364 118,395 93,578

Amounts receivable from controlled entities - - 4,384 5,299

126,447 101,364 122,779 98,877

The Group’s policy is to manage its exposure to movements in interest rates by fixing the interest rate on financial instruments, 
including bank loans, finance leases and hire purchase liabilities, where possible. In addition, the Group utilises a number of financial 
institutions to obtain the best interest rate possible and to manage its risk. The Group does not enter into interest rate hedges.
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28. financial risk management oBJectiVes anD policies (continueD)

(a) Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the variable interest rate risk exposures in existence at the balance sheet date:

At 30 June 2008, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant, post tax profit 
and equity would have been affected as follows:

Judgements of reasonably possible movements 
relating to financial assets and liabilities of  
floating rates:

Post Tax Profit  
Higher/(Lower)

Equity  
Higher/(Lower)

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

Consolidated

+0.5% (50 basis points) 436 355 - -

-0.5% (50 basis points) (436) (355) - -

Parent

+0.5% (50 basis points) 430 346 - -

-0.5% (50 basis points) (430) (346) - -

The movements in profit from 2007 to 2008 are due to higher interest revenue from variable rate cash balances as a result of higher 
interest rates and higher financial asset balances.

The periodic effects are determined by relating the hypothetical changes in the floating interest rates to the balance of financial 
instruments at reporting date. It is assumed that the balance at the reporting date is representative for the year as a whole. 

Foreign currency risk

As a result of operations in New Zealand and Papua New Guinea, the Group’s balance sheet can be affected by movements in the 
NZ$/A$ and PNGK/A$ exchange rates. 

The Group also has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises from sales or purchases by an operating entity in 
currencies other than the functional currency. The Group’s policy is to naturally manage foreign exchange exposure by contracting 
with customers to receive sales revenue in the currency that the expenses have been incurred.

However, where this is not possible, the Group will consider forward contracts. Currently, the Group manages significant US$ 
supplier purchases by taking out forward exchange contracts to purchase US$. At 30 June 2008, the Group has forward contracts 
to purchase US$9,625,000 over the next 5 months. Refer to note 15 for further information. 
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28. financial risk management oBJectiVes anD policies (continueD)

(a) Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

At 30 June 2008, the Group had the following exposure to foreign currency:

Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,476 1,995 - -

Trade and other receivables 785 1,641 - -

7,261 3,636 - -

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 489 716 - -

Derivative financial instruments 345 - 345 -

834 716 345 -

Net Exposure 6,427 2,920 (345) -

A sensitivity analysis has been performed based on the foreign currency risk exposures in existence at the balance sheet date and 
the impact on post tax profit is not material. 

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties.

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.  
Publicly available credit information from recognised providers is utilised for this purpose where available. 

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts 
is not significant.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.  The Group minimises concentrations of credit risk in relation  
to accounts receivable by undertaking transactions with a large number of customers within the resources, energy and  
infrastructure industries.

For transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit 
terms without the specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprises cash and cash equivalents, the 
Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counter party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount 
of these instruments.

Since the Group only trades with recognised third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
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28. financial risk management oBJectiVes anD policies (continueD)

(a) Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to manage the liquidity of the business by monitoring project cash flows and through the use of financing 
facilities. The Group currently utilises financing facilities in the form of bank loans and hire purchase liabilities. The liquidity of the 
Group is managed by the Group’s Finance & Accounting department. 

The table below reflects all contractually fixed pay-offs, repayments and interest resulting from financial liabilities, including derivative 
financial instruments as of 30 June 2008. 

The remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s and Parent entity’s financial liabilities are:

Consolidated
Monadelphous 
Group Limited

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

2008 
$’000

2007 
$’000

6 months or less 248,709 122,173 381,540 313,838

6 – 12 months 5,345 5,800 - -

1 – 5 years 14,400 18,131 - -

268,454 146,104 381,540 313,838

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities:

6 months  
or less
$’000

6 months   
to 1 year

$’000

1 year to 5 
years  
$’000

Total  
Contractual 
Cash Flows 

$’000

Total Carrying 
Amount  
$’000

Year ended 30 June 2008

Consolidated

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables * 240,441 - - 240,441 240,441

Bank loan 207 202 1,040 1,449 917

Hire purchase liability 7,716 5,143 13,360 26,219 23,965

Derivatives – US$ inflows (10,116) - - (10,116) -

Derivatives – A$ outflows 10,461 - - 10,461 345

Net maturity 248,709 5,345 14,400 268,454 265,668

Year ended 30 June 2007

Consolidated

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables * 115,892 - - 115,892 115,892

Bank loan 54 61 414 529 360

Hire purchase liability 6,227 5,739 17,717 29,683 27,126

Net maturity 122,173 5,800 18,131 146,104 143,378

*  Trade and other payables includes advances on construction work in progress of $186,030,000 (2007: $64,385,000).  
This amount is expected to be settled by the performance of work rather than via contractual cash flows. 
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28. financial risk management oBJectiVes anD policies (continueD)

(a) Risk Exposures and Responses (continued)

6 months  
or less
$’000

6 months   
to 1 year

$’000

1 year to 5 
years  
$’000

Total  
Contractual 
Cash Flows 

$’000

Total Carrying 
Amount  
$’000

Year ended 30 June 2008

Parent

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 381,195 - - 381,195 381,195

Derivatives – US$ inflows (10,116) - - (10,116) -

Derivatives – A$ outflows 10,461 - - 10,461 345

Net maturity 381,540 - - 381,540 381,540

Year ended 30 June 2007

Parent

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 313,838 - - 313,838 313,838

Net maturity 313,838 - - 313,838 313,838
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28. financial risk management oBJectiVes anD policies (continueD)

(b)   Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The aggregate net fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised, at balance date,  
are as follows:

CARRYING AMOUNT AGGREGATE NET FAIR VALUE

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

2008
$’000

2007
$’000

CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash 126,447 101,364 126,447 101,364

Other debtors 59,744 2,362 59,744 2,362

Receivables – trade 145,123 93,610 145,123 93,610

Total Financial Assets 331,314 197,336 331,314 197,336

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Payables 240,441 115,892 240,441 115,892

Bank loan 917 360 1,149 428

Hire Purchase liability 23,965 27,126 22,641 26,042

Derivative financial instruments 345 - 345 -

Total Financial Liabilities 265,668 143,378 264,576 142,362

PARENT

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash 118,395 93,578 118,395 93,578

Other debtors 163 114 163 114

Amounts receivable from controlled entities 319,362 279,681 319,362 279,681

Total Financial Assets 437,920 373,373 437,920 373,373

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Payables 448 362 448 362

Amounts payable to controlled entities 380,747 313,476 380,747 313,476

Derivative financial instruments 345 - 345 -

Total Financial Liabilities 381,540 313,838 381,540 313,838

The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of financial assets and liabilities.

Recognised financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalent:  The carrying amount approximates fair value because of their short-term maturity.

Receivables, payables and derivative financial instruments:  The carrying amount approximates fair value.

Interest bearing liabilities with fixed interest rates:  The fair value includes contracted interest cash flows. 
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The Board of Directors of Monadelphous Group Limited (Monadelphous) is responsible for the corporate governance of the 
consolidated entity. The Board guides and monitors the business and affairs of Monadelphous on behalf of the shareholders by 
whom they are elected and to whom they are accountable.

The table below summarises the Group’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Council’s Recommendations.

 RECOMMENDATION 
Comply  
Yes/No

Reference/ 
Explanation

1.1 Formalise and disclose the functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to 
management. 

Yes Page 107

2.1 A majority of the Board should be independent directors. Yes Page 108

2.2 The Chairperson should be an independent director. No Page 108

2.3 The roles of Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer should not be exercised by the same 
individual. 

Yes Page 108

2.4 The Board should establish a nomination committee. Yes Page 109

3.1 Establish a code of conduct to guide the directors, the Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent), 
the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) and any other key executives as to:

Yes Website

- the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Company’s integrity;

-  the responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of 
unethical practices. 

3.2 Disclose the policy concerning trading in Company securities by directors, officers and 
employees. 

Yes Page 108

4.1 Require the Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or 
equivalent) to state in writing to the Board that the Company’s financial reports present a true 
and fair view, in all material respects, of the Company’s financial condition and operational 
results and are in accordance with relevant accounting standards. 

Yes Page 110

4.2 The Board should establish an audit committee. Yes Page 109

4.3 Structure the audit committee so that it consists of: Yes Page 109

- only non-executive directors;

- a majority of independent directors;

- an independent Chairperson, who is not Chairperson of the Board;

- at least three members.

4.4 The audit committee should have a formal charter. Yes Website

5.1 Establish written policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing 
Rule disclosure requirements and to ensure accountability at a senior management level for 
that compliance. 

Yes Website

6.1 Design and disclose a communication strategy to promote effective communication with 
shareholders and encourage effective participation at general meetings. 

Yes Website

6.2 Request the external auditor to attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer 
shareholder questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the 
auditor’s report. 

Yes

7.1 The Board or appropriate Board committee should establish policies on risk oversight and 
management. 

Yes Page 109
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 RECOMMENDATION (CONTINUED) 
Comply  
Yes/No

Reference/ 
Explanation

7.2 The Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) should 
state to the Board in writing that:

Yes Page 110

-  the statement given in accordance with best practice recommendation 4.1 (the integrity of 
financial statements) is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal 
compliance and control which implements the policies adopted by the Board

-  the Company’s risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating 
efficiently and effectively in all material respects.

8.1 Disclose the process for performance evaluation of the Board, its committees and individual 
directors, and key executives. 

Yes Page 110

9.1 Provide disclosure in relation to the Company’s remuneration policies to enable investors to 
understand (i) the costs and benefits of those policies and (ii) the link between remuneration 
paid to directors and key executives and corporate performance. 

Yes Page 110

9.2 The Board should establish a remuneration committee. Yes Page 110

9.3 Clearly distinguish the structure of non-executive directors’ remuneration from that of 
executives. 

Yes Page 110

9.4 Ensure that payment of equity-based executive remuneration is made in accordance with 
thresholds set in plans approved by shareholders. 

Yes Page 110

10.1 Establish and disclose a code of conduct to guide compliance with legal and other obligations 
to legitimate shareholders. 

Yes Website

Monadelphous Group Limited’s corporate governance practices were in place throughout the year ended 30 June 2008, unless 
otherwise stated. Monadelphous Group Limited complies in all material respects with the Council’s best practice recommendations.

Various corporate governance practices are discussed within this statement. For further information on corporate governance policies 
adopted by Monadelphous Group Limited refer to our website:  

www.monadelphous.com.au

Board Functions

The Board seeks to identify the expectations of the shareholders, as well as other regulatory and ethical expectations and obligations. 
In addition, the Board is responsible for identifying areas of significant business risk and ensuring arrangements are in place to 
adequately manage those risks. 

To ensure that the Board is well equipped to discharge its responsibilities it has established guidelines for the nomination and 
selection of directors and for the operation of the Board. 

The responsibility for the operation and administration of the company is delegated, by the Board, to the Managing Director and the 
executive management team. The Board ensures that this team is appropriately qualified and experienced to discharge their 
responsibilities and has in place procedures to assess the performance of the Managing Director and the executive management 
team. 

Whilst at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and monitoring the company, in discharging its stewardship it makes 
use of sub-committees. Specialist committees are able to focus on a particular responsibility and provide informed feedback to the 
Board. 

To this end the Board has established the following committees:

 - Audit

 - Nomination

 - Remuneration

The roles and responsibilities of these committees are discussed throughout this Corporate Governance Statement. 

The Board is responsible for ensuring that management’s objectives and activities are aligned with the expectations and risk 
identified by the Board. The Board has a number of mechanisms in place to ensure this is achieved including:

- Board approval of a strategic plan designed to meet stakeholders’ needs and manage business risk;

-  ongoing development of the strategic plan and approving initiatives and strategies designed to ensure continued growth and 
success of the entity; and 

-  implementation of budgets by management and monitoring progress against budgets – via the establishment and reporting of 
both financial and non-financial key performance indicators. 
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Board Functions (continued)

Other functions reserved to the Board include:

- approval of the annual and half-yearly financial reports;

- approving and monitoring the progress of major capital expenditure, capital management, and acquisitions and divestitures;

- ensuring that any significant risks that arise are identified, assessed, appropriately managed and monitored; and

- reporting to shareholders. 

Structure of the Board

The skills, experience and expertise relevant to the position of director held by each director in office at the date of the annual report 
is included in the Directors’ Report on page 45.  Directors of Monadelphous are considered to be independent when they are 
independent of management and free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with – or could 
reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with – the exercise of their unfettered and independent judgement.

In the context of director independence, ‘materiality’ is considered from both the company and individual director perspective.  The 
determination of materiality requires consideration of both quantitative and qualitative elements.  An item is presumed to be 
quantitatively immaterial if it is equal or less than 5% of the appropriate base amount.  It is presumed to be material (unless there is 
qualitative evidence to the contrary) if it is equal to or greater than 10% of the appropriate base amount.  Qualitative factors 
considered include whether a relationship is strategically important, the competitive landscape, the nature of the relationship and the 
contractual or other arrangements governing it and other factors which point to the actual ability of the director in question to shape 
the direction of the company’s loyalty.

In accordance with the definition of independence above, and the materiality thresholds set, Mr P. J. Dempsey, Mr I. Tollman and Mr 
C. P. Michelmore are considered to be independent directors. 

There are procedures in place, agreed by the Board, to enable directors in furtherance of their duties to seek independent 
professional advice at the company’s expense.

The Board believes that while the Chairman is not independent, the majority of the directors are independent with the appointment of 
an additional Non-Executive Director during the period (Mr C. P. Michelmore) and the current composition of the Board with its 
combined skills and capability, best serve the interests of the shareholders.

The term in office held by each director in office at the date of this report is as follows:

 C. G. B. Rubino 17 years Executive Director

 R. Velletri 15 years Executive Director

 I. Tollman 15 years Non-Executive Director

 P. J. Dempsey 4 years Non-Executive Director

 C. P. Michelmore 1 year Non-Executive Director

Trading Policy

Under the company’s Share Trading Policy, a director, executive or other employee must not trade in any securities of the company at 
any time when they are in possession of unpublished, price sensitive information in relation to those securities.

The periods in which buying and selling of the company’s securities, either directly or indirectly, by a director, executive or other 
employee is allowed, spans the periods between 24 hours and 30 working days after each of the following events:

- release of the annual and half-yearly results to the ASX;

- the close of the Annual General Meeting; or

- any other time as the Board of Directors of Monadelphous permits. 

Before commencing to trade, a director, executive or other employee must first notify the Company Secretary of their intention to do 
so. The notification must state that the proposed purchase or sale is not as a result of access to, or being in possession of, price 
sensitive information that is not currently in the public domain. 

As required by the ASX Listing Rules, the company notifies the ASX of any transaction conducted by the Directors in the securities of 
the company. 
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Nomination Committee

The Board has a nomination committee which operates under a charter and meets at least annually. The nomination committee is 
responsible for ensuring that the Board continues to operate within the established guidelines, including when necessary, selecting 
candidates for the position of director.  The nomination committee comprises of two non-executive directors and one executive 
director.  Members of the nomination committee throughout the year were:

 C. G. B. Rubino (Chairman)

 C. P. Michelmore (appointed to Nomination Committee on 26 June 2008)

 R. Velletri (resigned from Nomination Committee on 26 June 2008)

 P. J. Dempsey

For details of directors’ attendance at meetings of the nomination committee, refer to page 54 of the Directors’ Report.

Audit Committee

The Board has an audit committee which operates under a charter approved by the Board.  It is the Board’s responsibility to ensure 
that an effective internal control framework exists within the entity.  This includes internal controls to deal with both the effectiveness 
and efficiency of significant business processes, the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records and the 
reliability of financial information as well as non-financial considerations such as the benchmarking of operational key performance 
indicators.  The Board has delegated responsibility for establishing and maintaining a framework of internal control and ethical 
standards to the audit committee.

The committee also provides the Board with additional assurance regarding the reliability of financial information for inclusion in the 
financial reports. All members of the audit committee are non-executive directors. The members of the audit committee during the 
year were:

 P. J. Dempsey (Chairman)

 C. G. B. Rubino (resigned from Audit Committee on 26 June 2008)

 I. Tollman

 C. P. Michelmore (appointed to Audit Committee on 26 June 2008)

Qualifications of audit committee members

 P. J. Dempsey has over 32 years experience in the management of risks associated with the industry in which we operate.

 C. G. B. Rubino has significant experience in the management of Monadelphous having served as the Managing Director of  
 Monadelphous for 16 years.  

  I. Tollman has significant experience in the management of Monadelphous having served as the Finance Director of 
Monadelphous for 14 years.

 C. P. Michelmore has over 36 years experience in the management of risks associated with the construction industry. 

For details on the number of meetings of the audit committee held during the year and the attendees at those meetings, refer to page 
54 of the Directors’ Report.

Risk

The Board determines the company’s risk profile and is responsible for overseeing and approving risk management strategy and 
policies, internal compliance and internal control. The company’s process of risk management and internal compliance and control 
includes:

-  establishing the company’s goals and objectives, and implementing and monitoring strategies and policies to achieve these goals 
and objectives;

-  continuously identifying and measuring risks that might impact upon the achievement of the company’s goals and objectives, and 
monitoring the environment for emerging factors and trends that affect these risks;

-   formulating risk management strategies to manage identified risks, and designing and implementing appropriate risk 
management policies and internal controls; and

-  monitoring the performance of, and continuously improving the effectiveness of, risk management systems and internal 
compliance and controls, including an annual assessment of the effectiveness of risk management and internal compliance and 
control. 

To this end, comprehensive practices are in place that are directed towards achieving the following objectives:

- effectiveness and efficiency in the use of the company’s resources; 

- compliance with applicable laws and regulations; and

- preparation of reliable published financial information.
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Managing Director and CFO Certification

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have provided a written statement to the Board that:

-  their views provided on the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial reports are founded on a sound system of risk 
management and internal compliance and control which implements the financial policies adopted by the Board; and

-  that the company’s and consolidated entity’s risk management and internal compliance and control systems are operating 
effectively in all material respects. 

Performance

The performance of the Board and key executives is reviewed regularly against both measurable and qualitative indicators.  During 
the reporting period, the nomination committee conducted performance evaluations which involved an assessment of the Board’s 
performance against qualitative and quantitative performance criteria.  The performance criteria against which the Board and 
executives are assessed are aligned with the financial and non-financial objectives of Monadelphous.  

Remuneration Committee

It is the company’s objective to provide maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality Board and executive team 
by remunerating directors and key executives fairly and appropriately with reference to relevant employment market conditions.  To 
assist in achieving this objective, the remuneration committee links the nature and amount of executive directors’ and officers’ 
emoluments to the company’s financial and operational performance.  The expected outcomes of the remuneration structure are:

- retention and motivation of key executives;

- attraction of quality management to the Company; and

- performance incentives which allow executives to share the rewards of the success of Monadelphous.

For full discussion of the company’s remuneration philosophy and framework and the remuneration received by directors and 
executives in the current period, please refer to the Remuneration Report, which is contained within the Directors’ Report. 

In relation to the issuing of options, discretion is exercised by the Board, having regard to the overall performance of Monadelphous 
and the performance of the individual during the period. The Monadelphous Group Limited Employee Option Plan rules have been 
approved by shareholders.

There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits, other than statutory superannuation to directors.

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the directors themselves and the executive 
team.  The Board has established a remuneration committee, comprising two non-executive directors and one executive director.  
Members of the remuneration committee throughout the year were:

 C. P. Michelmore (Chairman) (appointed to Remuneration Committee on 26 June 2008)

 C. G. B. Rubino 

 R. Velletri (resigned from Remuneration Committee on 26 June 2008)

 I. Tollman

For details on the number of meetings of the remuneration committee held during the year and the attendees at those meetings, refer 
to page 54 of the Directors’ Report.
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Additional information required by the Australian Securities Exchange Limited and not shown elsewhere in this report is as follows.  
The information is current at 30 September 2008.

a) Distribution of equity securities

The number of shareholders, by size of holding, in each class of share is:

Category 
(Size of Holdings)

Number of Ordinary  
Shareholders

Number of  
Ordinary Shares

% of  
Issued Capital

1 – 1,000 3,184 1,731,648 2.05

1,001 – 5,000 2,742 7,036,080 8.35

5,001 – 10,000 720 5,550,218 6.58

10,001 – 100,000 811 22,522,634 26.71

100,001 – 9,999,999 71 47,476,952 56.31

Total 7,528 84,317,532 100.00

The number of shareholders holding less than marketable parcels is 50.

b) Twenty largest shareholders

The names of the twenty largest holders of quoted shares are:

Rank Name Units
% of Issued 

Capital

1 Invia Custodian Pty Ltd (Black Account) 6,573,599 7.80

2 J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 6,318,082 7.49

3 ANZ Nominees Limited (Cash Income Account) 5,291,282 6.28

4 National Nominees Limited 4,044,008 4.80

5 HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 3,347,764 3.97

6 Fadmoor Pty Ltd (John Rubino Super Fund Account) 3,004,000 3.56

7 Velham Nominees Pty Ltd (The Velletri Family Account) 1,700,000 2.02

8 Wilmar Enterprises Pty Ltd 1,320,000 1.57

9 UBS Nominees Pty Ltd 1,136,533 1.35

10 Carramar Pty Ltd 1,050,000 1.25

11 RBC Dexia Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd (PIPOOLED Account) 874,321 1.04

12 Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 681,375 0.81

13 Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 611,840 0.73

14 Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited (CFSIL CWLTH AUST SHS 19 Account) 529,168 0.63

15 Australian Reward Investment Alliance 501,939 0.60

16 Irtol Investments Pty Ltd (Tollman Super Fund Account) 479,950 0.57

17 Mrs Mabs Melville 428,500 0.51

18 Miss Mary Carol Hughes 400,000 0.47

19 HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited – GSI ECSA 358,596 0.43

20 Mr Dino Foti 326,816 0.39

 Total 38,977,773 46.27
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c) Substantial shareholders

The names of the substantial shareholders listed in the holding company’s register are:

Shareholder Ordinary Shares % Held

Invia Custodian Pty Limited (Black Account) 6,573,599 7.80

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 6,318,082 7.49

ANZ Nominees Limited (Cash Income Account) 5,291,282 6.28

d) Voting rights

No restrictions.  On a show of hands every member or proxy present shall be entitled to one vote unless a poll is called in which case 
every share shall have one vote.

e) Stock exchange listing

Quotation has been granted for all the ordinary shares of the company on all Member Exchanges of the Australian Securities 
Exchange Limited.
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at Bluewater Grill, Heathcote Centre, 56 Duncraig Road, Applecross on Tuesday, 25 
November 2008 at 10.00am (AWDT).  Full details of the meeting are contained in the Notice of Annual General Meeting sent with this 
report.

Dividends

The following options are available regarding payment of dividends:

i) By cheque payable to the shareholder; or

ii) By direct deposit to a bank, building society or credit union account

Lost or stolen cheques should be reported immediately to the Share Registry, in writing.

Electronic payments are credited on the dividend payment date and confirmed by a payment advice sent to the shareholder.  
Request forms for this service are available from the Company’s Share Registry at the address shown below.

Shareholder Enquiries

All enquiries should be directed to the Company’s Share Registry at:
Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd Telephone: 1300 557 010 (Free call within Australia)
Level 2, 45 St George’s Terrace  + 61 3 9415 4000
PERTH  Facsimile: + 61 8 9323 2033
Western Australia  6000 Email:  web.queries@computershare.com.au
    Website: www.computershare.com

All written enquiries should include your Holder Identification Number as it appears on your Holding Statement along with your 
current address.

Change of address

It is very important that shareholders notify the Share Registry immediately, in writing, if there is any change to their registered 
address.

Lost holding statements

Shareholders should inform the Share Registry immediately, in writing, so that a replacement statement can be arranged.

Change of name

Shareholders who change their name should notify the Share Registry, in writing, and attach a copy of a relevant marriage certificate 
or deed poll.

Tax file numbers (TFN)

Although it is not compulsory for each shareholder to provide a TFN or exemption details, for those shareholders who do not provide 
the necessary details, the Company will be obliged to deduct tax from any unfranked portion of their dividends at the top marginal 
rate.  TFN application forms can be obtained from the Share Registry, any Australian Post Office or the Australian Tax Office.

Monadelphous publications

The company’s Annual Report is the main source of information for investors and is mailed to shareholders in October.  Shareholders 
who do wish to receive the Annual Report should advise the Share Registry.  Monadelphous Group Limited financial reports are also 
available on its website (refer below).

Information about Monadelphous 

Requests for specific information on the Company can be directed to the Company Secretary at the following address:
Monadelphous Group Limited
PO Box 365
Applecross,  WA  6953
Telephone: (08) 9316 1255
Facsimile: (08) 9316 1950

Monadelphous website

Information about Monadelphous Group Limited is available on the internet at www.monadelphous.com.au
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Head Office
1 Sleat Road

Applecross Western Australia 6153
PO Box 365

Applecross Western Australia 6953
Tel: +61 8 9316 1255

Fax: +61 8 9316 1950

Brisbane Office
Level 5, 301 Coronation Drive

Milton Queensland 4064
PO Box 1872

Milton Queensland 4064
Tel: +61 7 3368 6700

Fax: +61 7 3368 6777

Adelaide Office
Level 1, 76 Waymouth Street

Adelaide South Australia 5000
GPO Box 2752 

Adelaide South Australia 5001
Tel: +61 8 8125 2800  

Fax: +61 8 8125 2801

Email: monadel@monadel.com.au
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